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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,
Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting 5" Annual Report on the affairs of the

Company for the financial year ended 2019-20.

A. BUSINESS OVERVIEW: PRESENT STATE OF AFFAIRS
Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited (IrconSGTL) is engaged into construction of
Shivpuri Guna Highway Project on NH-3 in the State of Madhya Pradesh with a total
project cost of Rs. 872.11 Crores, however the project is being executed in two phases
i.e. Phase - | & Phase - Il. The total cost for Phase - | is Rs. 759.98 Crores whereas the

cost for Phase - Il is Rs. 112.13 Crores and will commence from January 2021.

Company is making physical and financial progress in terms of the scheduled timeline
mandated by the Concession Agreement signed with NHAI for completion of
construction within 910 days from the Appointed Date being 25" January 2016

(Commercial Operation Date‘ - COD) and commissioning the tollway operations.

The Commercial Date of Operations (COD) for Stage-1 of the project (i.e. 87.5Km
length) was achieved one and a half month ahead of the schedule i.e. on June 6,
2018 (though scheduled on July 23, 2018). Thus, operation of toll plaza and
collection of revenue has been started on the project w.e.f. June 7, 2018. Revenue
collected from June 07, 2018 to March 31, 2019 is ¥72.88 crore.

Due to nation-wide lockdown to curb spread of COVID-19 and NHAI instruction,
tolling was suspended from March 26, 2020 and the revenue at the toll plaza has
reduced considerably. However, operation of tolling has been resumed from April
20, 2020.

The sources of funding utilized for attaining the said financial progress is as
mentioned below:-

- Equity Share Capital: Rs. 150 crore (Entire equity has been called and expended)

- Secured Loan (Borrowings): Rs. 564.15 crore as on 31% March 2020 (Against the

Sanctioned Loan Amount of Rs. 722.11 crore).
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B. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY
In pursuance of the provisions enumerated under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, the Company has prepared its annual financial statements for

the financial year 2019-20 as per Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS).

The summarized financial position of the Company for the financial year ended
31% March 2020 as per IND AS is as tabulated below:-

Financial performance Indicators as on 31° March 2020

(Amount in Rs. crore)

Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year

31.03.2020 | Ended 31.03.2019

(Audited) (Audited)

1. Equity Share Capital 150 150

2. Other Equity (includes Reserves and (62.19) (31.36)
Surplus)

3. Loan from Holding Company

(Borrowings) 564.15 561.59
4. Intangible Assets under Development - -
5. Other Intangible Assets 650.88 692.41
6. Total Assets and Liabilities 656.06 705.34
7. Revenue from Operations 94 .44 149.75
8. Other Income 0.44 0.43
9. Total Income (7) + (8) 94.88 150.18
10. Project Expenses 29.58 101.60
e .
12. Other Expenses 0.04 0.06
12. Total Expenses (10) + (11) + (12) 125.61 180.71
13. Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (9) — (12) (30.73) (30.53)
14. Profit / (Loss) After Tax (30.83) (30.63)

15. Other Comprehensive Income - -

16. Total Comprehensive Income
(Comprising Profit (Loss) & Other (30.83) (30.63)
Comprehensive Income (14) + (15)
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Share Capital

The Authorized and paid-up share capital of the Company is Rs.150 Crore comprising of
15,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each as on 31% March 2020.

C. CASH FLOWS FROM THE PROJECT
The total decrease in Cash Flows from the project activities during the year is Rs.6.29

crore.

D. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT (MDAR)
The MDAR has been annexed to the Director's Report as ANNEXURE — A.

E. BOARD COMMITTEES

In pursuance of MCA's exemption notification and exemption granted by DPE from the
compliance of DPE Corporate Governance Guidelines, Audit Committee and Nomination
& Remuneration Committee (NRC) has been rescinded by the Board w.e.f. 5" February
2020.

However, the details pertaining to composition of Audit Committee & Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (NRC) before its rescission are included in the Corporate

Governance Report, which forms part of this report.

F. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
(i) NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND THE ATTENDANCE RECORD

The Board has met 7 number of times during the previous financial year 2019-20 as per
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Meetings of Board and its Powers, Rules,
2014 and DPE (Corporate Governance) Guidelines 2010.

Details of Board Meetings Convened During the FY 2019-20

Sr. Date of Board Meeting | Time Gap w.r.t. | No. of Directors No. of

No. Previous Meeting Present Directors
(No. of Days) Absent

1. 2" May 2019 72 5 Nil

2. 29" July 2019 87 5 Nil

3. 23" August 2019 24 4 1

4. 19" September 2019 26 4 1

5. 24" October 2019 34 3 1

6. 27" January 2020 94 4 1

7. 5" February 2020 08 4 1
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(ii) BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The following Directors are holding office as on date:

S. No. | Directors Date of Appointment | DIN

1. Mr. S.L. Gupta, Part-time 1% November 2019 07598920
Chairman

2. Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal, Part- 12" May 2015 05308809
time Director

3. Mr. R.S. Yadav, Part-time 27" January 2020 07752915
Director

4. Mr. Surajit Dutta, Part-time 1% November 2019 06687032
Director

5. Mr. D.K. Sharma, Part-time 19" September 2019 08556821
Director

(iii) KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act 2013, Mr. Masood

Ahmad Najar, Chief Executive Officer, was declared as Key Managerial Personnel

KMP) of the Company w.e.f. 21% July 2016.
y y

Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Gupta has been deputed by the holding company as Chief Financial

Officer of the Company, and was declared as Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the

Company w.e.f. 4" January 2019.

Ms. Sakshi Mehta was appointed as Company Secretary w.e.f. 29" May 2017.

G. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT (DRS)
(Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of Companies Act, 2013)

In accordance with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of

the Company hereby confirms:-

(a) that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had

been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) that the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true

and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of

the profit and loss of the company for that period;

| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2019-20
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(c) that the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the

assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
(d) that the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) that the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions

of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

H. STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS U/S 149(6)
Not Applicable as the Company do not have any Independent Director during the
Financial Year 2019-20.

I. INTER-CORPORATE LOANS AND INVESTMENTS (SEC 185 AND SEC 186)
The Company has not made any inter-corporate loans and investments and as such NIL

transactions stand as on date.

J. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN - MGT-9
The extract of Annual Return as per Section 92(3) read with Rule 12(1) of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (Mandatory Requirement of the Act) has
been annexed as ANNEXURE - B.

K. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS U/S 188 — CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS
WITH RELATED PARTIES IN FORM NO. AOC-2
The disclosure pertaining to the transactions entered by the Company with its related
parties in Form No. AOC-2 has been enclosed as ANNEXURE - C.

L. DIVIDEND & RESERVES
The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend on the Equity Shares of the
Company for the FY ended 31 March 2020.

As per the applicability of IND AS, Reserves are reflected as Retained Earnings under
the head Other Equity’ in Financial Statements and your Company has a negative

balance of Rs. (62.19) crore in Retained Earnings as on 31% March 2020.

M. DEPOSITS
The Company has not invited any deposits from its members pursuant to the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

N. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
During the construction of the highway, adequate measures as stipulated by NHAI had
been taken to ensure environment protection and conservation. There was no foreign

exchange inflow or outflow during the financial year 2019-20.

| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2019-20
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O. DIRECTOR’S OBSERVATIONS AND COMMENTS FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(EXPLANATIONS FOR ANY COMMENTS MADE BY AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT)

The Financial Statements reflect a true and fair view of the accounts based on double
entry system of accounting with profit and losses recorded on accrual basis, ledger
posting for each and every transaction recorded in journal, preparation of trial balance,

rectification of errors and balancing of accounts.

The Directors of the Company have closely evaluated the Financial Statements along
with the Observations and Comments made by the Statutory Auditors in their Report and

found it to be in complete order with nil qualifications raised by the Auditors.

P. DETAILS RELATING TO ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
Internal Financial Controls (IFC) in relation to Financial Statements pertain to proper
safeguard measures being undertaken in terms of adherence to policies and procedures
being adopted, asset provisioning and recording of expenses and incomes (Financial

Reporting).

As per Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2015 (Applicable from the date of publication in the Official Gazette) provides for
Auditors to mention in their Auditors‘ Report about the adequacy of internal financial

controls existing in the Company commensurating with the size and nature of business.

The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements as designed and
implemented by the Company are adequate commensurate with its size and complexity.
Your Company believes that these internal control systems provide a reasonable
assurance that the Company's transactions are executed with management
authorization and that they are recorded in all material respects to permit preparation of
financial statements in conformity with established accounting principles and that the

assets of the Company are adequately safeguarded against significant misuse or loss.

Q. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board does not foresee any major threat/risk to the business of the Company.

R. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
There is no employee who has drawn remuneration of Rs.60 Lakhs or more per annum
or Rs.5 lakh or more per month during the year 2019-20 in terms of section 134(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of

key Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.
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S.

b)

d)
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Report on Corporate Governance has been annexed to this Report as ANNEXURE
=D.

AUDITORS

Statutory Auditors

M/s Ajay K. Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants, was appointed by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India (C&AG) as Statutory Auditors, to audit the Financial Statements
of the Company for the year 2019-20.

Secretarial Auditor
M/s Sorabh Jain & Associates, Company Secretaries, was appointed by the Board of

Directors to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2019-20.

Internal Auditors
The Board of Directors have appointed M/s V.M. Arora & Company, Chartered
Accountants, as Internal Auditors for the financial year 2019-20, to conduct the Internal

Audit of the Company.

Cost Auditor

M/s Ravi Sahni & Co., Cost Accountants, was appointed by the Board of Directors as
Cost Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2019-20, for conducting the audit of
cost records maintained by the Company as per the applicable Rules/Guidance Note,

etc.

CSR COMMITTEE

During the year under review, the Company was not required to constitute the Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee due to not falling within the purview of Net Worth
of Rs.500 Crores or more, Turnover of Rs.1,000 Crores or more or Net Profit of Rs.5
Crores or more. (Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies

(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

The Company has no subsidiaries, associate or joint venture companies.

. DETAILS OF MATERIAL CHANGES OR COMMITMENTS AFFECTED FROM THE

DATE OF CLOSE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TILL THE DATE OF REPORT OF AGM
After the close of the year, the Company has repaid Rs.13.50 crore as on 13" August

2020 to holding company of loan already taken from holding company (Ircon).

13
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X. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
DPE has granted exemption to the Company from signing of MoU with Ircon for the

financial year 2019-20.

XI. MSE COMPLIANCE
It always has been endeavour of IrconSGTL to support Micro and Small Enterprises
(MSEs) and local suppliers. IrconSGTL has taken a number of steps including the
necessary steps to implement the Public Procurement Policy of the Government of India
to procure the items specified from MSEs. The actual procurement from MSEs during the
year was Rs. 0.48 lakhs vis-a-vis total annual procurement target of Rs.0.50 lakhs of the

Company.

XII.POLICY IN COMPLIANCE OF THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT:-
The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and
adoption of policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at
workplace is under consideration in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules

made thereunder.

During the period under review, there was no incidence where any complaint relating to
sexual harassment was reported pursuant Section 22 of The Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Also, the
constitution of internal complaint committee in accordance with the provisions of Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

is under consideration.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to place on record their gratitude for the valuable assistance and co-
operation extended to the Company by the Ircon International Limited, Lenders,
Business Associates, Auditors of the Company and the valued Client of the Company —
National Highways Authority of India. They also wish to place on record their
appreciation for the loyal and devoted services rendered by all the categories of

employees.

| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2019-20



HEomsge

Date: 19.08.2020
Place: New Delhi
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited

Sd/-
S.L. Gupta
Chairman
DIN: 07598920
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ANNEXURE - A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT (MDAR)

(i) Industry Structure and Developments
Construction Industry over the years with respect to construction of roads and highways is
spearheading towards more growth and more capital contribution being made to develop and

operate such projects on BOT Basis as awarded by NHAI.

NHAI is awarding such projects enabling investors and contractors to earn stable incomes
with less risk of loss or uncertainties based on area‘s traffic assessment as compared to
other industries where demand and supply factors along with availability of substitutes as
service providers. Herein such projects when awarded are critically evaluated before issue of
letter of acceptance to the party in terms of credibility and financial position to execute the
project, making estimated earnings from such projects less susceptible from market ups and

downs.

As such NHAI under its flagship programme NHDP-Phase IV has taken as the challenge to
develop, expand the National Highways (NH) network in the Country. For implementation of
the scheme, the work of widening and strengthening of the Shivpuri Guna Section (NH-3) in
the State of Madhya Pradesh for which tender was floated by NHAI in which Ircon
International Limited (i.e. holding company) participated, bagged the contract for execution
and incorporated SPV named as Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited. This project based on
industrial trends has growth potential and has increased propensity to make huge collections

from highway consumers relative to inflation rates existing in the economy.
(ii) Strengths and Weaknesses
» Strengths

Due to increased focus of government on infrastructure sector, the roads and highways
network is going to expand further with more and more investments flowing into it. Good
growth in road traffic is in a way impetus for priority sector development by Government of
India — Make in India and Industrial Corridors adding up to the demand for better road
connectivity and smooth flow of traffic. Rate of growth in Traffic on highways is expected to
rise with more economic and industrial developments in the next two years. With a growing
population in India, demand for road transport would increase further by 2020, implying more

investments and more returns.
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>

Weaknesses

(i) Chances of Natural disadvantage are there.

(i) Construction Projects relating to highways face issues with respect to efficiency in
delivering timely output.

(iii) Unexpected cost escalations due to increase in price of petroleum products and natural

materials.

(iii) Opportunities and Threats

>

Opportunities

Continuous rising vehicles on the roads and highways shall bring stability and growth in
operations and the related profitability.

Development of Estimated Benefit — Cost Analysis Model for Highway Projects helps in
quantifying expected revenues (toll income) over a long-period of time, as compared to

rendering of other services.
Threats

No Major threat has been assessed as the Project's Physical Progress’ for Phase — | has
been completed and the Commercial Operation Date (COD) has been achieved 1 month &
15 days in advance i.e. on 6" June 2018. Thus, toll Collection & Operation and Road
Maintenance Agency has been deployed on the project. However, with development of new

routes, possibility of diversion of traffic cannot be rules out.

(iv) Outlook

National Highways Authority of India (NHAI) under its flagship project -National Highways
Development Program (NHDP)” is planning to give further boost to the construction industry
by way of awarding more highway projects and encouraging private partnerships and use of

innovative technologies for development.

(v) Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance

| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2019-20
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Table I: Present Financial Situation

(Amount in Rs. Crore)

For the Period From

Particulars 1%t April 2019 to 31% March 2020

l. | Revenue:

Revenue from operations 94 .44

Other income 0.44

Total Revenue 94.88
Il. | Expenses:

Project Expenses 29.58

Employee benefits Expenses 1.60

Finance Costs 52.84

Depreciation, amortization and impairment 41.55

Other Expenses 0.04

Total Expenses 125.61
IV. | Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (30.73)

(vi) Material developments in Human Resources, Industrial Relations front, including

number of people employed

The Company has appointed the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer

(CFO) and the Company Secretary of the Company for handling the executive functions,

financial affairs and mandatory compliances and disclosures of the Company.

Date: 19.08.2020
Place: New Delhi

| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2019-20

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited

Sd/-
S.L. Gupta
Chairman
DIN: 07598920
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FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2020

ANNEXURE - B

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Company (Management
& Administration) Rules, 2014

. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1. |CIN U45400DL2015G0I1280017

2. | Registration Date 12" May, 2015

3. | Name of the Company Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited

4. | Category/Sub-category of the Government Company (Wholly-owned Subsidiary
Company Company of Ircon International Limited)

5. | Address of the Registered office & C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi -110017
contact details

6. | Whether Listed or Unlisted Company Unlisted Company

7. | Name, Address & contact details of Not Applicable

the Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

IIl. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

(Al

contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

the business activities

S. No.

Name and Description of Main Products /

NIC Code of the

% to Total Turnover of the

Pradesh:

Guna Section (NH-3) in the State of Madhya

Construction Services: Highway Project
(Through EPC Contractor)

Services Products/Services Company
Rendering Services in the nature of
construction of Project Highway on Shivpuri- 42101 100%

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

S.NO | NAME AND CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % of Shares held | Applicable
ADDRESS OF THE SUBSIDIARY Section
COMPANY | ASSOCIATE

1 IRCON L45203DL1976GOI1008171 HOLDING 100% * Sec
INTERNATIONAL COMPANY 2(46)
LIMITED

*100% Shares held by Ircon International Limited (Ircon) and its 8 Nominees.

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

A) CATEGORY-WISE SHARE HOLDING:

| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2019-20
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Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the end of the |% Change
Shareholders beginning of the year, year during
[As on 31-March-2019] [As on 31-March-2020 the year
Demat| Physical Total % of | Demat | Physical Total % of
Total Total
Shar Shares
es

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ - - - - - - - - -
HUF
b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
c) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -
d) Bodies Corp.# Nil 150000000 (150000000 100% Nil 150000000 [150000000 | 100% -
e) Banks / Fl - - - - - - - - -
f) Any other - - - - - - - - -
(2) Foreign - - - - - - - - -
Total Nil |150000000 (150000000 100% Nil  [150000000 |150000000 | 100% -

Shareholding of

Promoters (A)

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture

Capital Funds

f) Insurance

Companies

g) FlIs

h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):-

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2019-20
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ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -

b) Individuals - - - - - - - - -
i) Individual - - - - - - - _ N
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto

Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual - - - - - - - N N
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs. 1
lakh

c) Others - - - - - - R N N
(specify)
Non Resident - - - - - - - - -
Indians
Overseas - - - - - - R N N
Corporate Bodies

Foreign Nationals
Clearing - - - - - - R N N
Members
Trusts - - - - - - - - R
Foreign Bodies - - - - - - - - R N
DR

Sub-total (B)(2):-

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=B)(1)+ (B)(2)
C. Shares held - - - - - - - _ N
by Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total Nil |150000000 (150000000 100% Nil 150000000 150000000 | 100% -
(A+B+C)

# Bodies Corporate: 100% Shareholding is with Body Corporate — Ircon International Limited and its 8
Nominees.

B) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS:

SN | Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning of | Shareholding at the end of the year, %
Name the year, as on 31° March 2019 as on 31% March 2020 Change
No. of % of %of No. of % of Total | %of Shares in
Shares Total Shares Shares Shares of | Pledged / Sharehol
Shares | Pledged / the encumbere ding
of the | encumber company | d to Total during
Compan | ed to total Shares the Year
y shares
1 | Ircon 150000000 100% - 150000000 100% Nil -
International
Limited
Total 150000000 100% - 150000000 100% Nil -

Shareholding of Promoters: Company is wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited — with
150,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each i.e. Entire Shareholding held by Indian Promoters.

| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2019-20
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The other 8 shareholders out of which 1 shareholder is holding 200 shares “for and on behalf of Ircon

International Limited” and rest 7 are holding 100 shares each “for and on behalf of Ircon International
Limited”.

C) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING:

SN | Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the Year, as during the Year, as on 31
on 31° March 2019 March 2020
No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of Shares Shares of the
the Company
Company
1. | At the Beginning of the Year 150000000 100% 150000000 100%
2. | Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. NIL
allotment /transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc.):
3. | Atthe End of the Year 150000000 | 100% | 150000000 | 100%

D) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS:
(OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND HOLDERS OF GDRS AND ADRS):

SN | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during
beginning the
of the year Year
No. of % of total No. of Shares | % of Total
Shares Shares of Shares of the
the Company
Company
1. | At the Beginning of the Year
2. | Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment / NOT APPLICABLE
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):
3. | Atthe End of the Year

E) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL $:

Shareholding of Each Director(s) Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding
and Each Key Managerial of the Year, as on 31% March during the
Personnel 2019 Year as on 31% March
2020
No. of Shares % of total No. of % of total
Shares of the | Shares Shares of
Company the
Company

At the Beginning of the Year

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the End of the Year

NIL

| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2019-20

22



HEomsge

$ 100 equity shares of Rs. 10 each held by the directors of the Company, viz. Mr.
Ashok Kumar Goyal, Mr. Rajendra Singh Yadav, Mr. Surajit Dutta, only “For and on
behalf of Ircon International Limited (Ircon) and 200 equity shares of Rs.10 each held
by the Chairman of the Company i.e. Mr. S.L. Gupta, “For and on behalf of Ircon

International Limited (Ircon).”

F) INDEBTEDNESS - Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but

not due for payment.

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Secured Unsecured | Deposits Total
Loans Loans Indebtedness
excluding
deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

561,59,00,000

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

561,59,00,000

Total (i+ii+iii) 561,59,00,000
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
* Addition 18,00,00,000 18,00,00,000
* Reduction 15,44,00,000 15,44,00,000
Net Change 2,56,00,000

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

564,15,00,000

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

564,15,00,000

Total (i+ii+iii)

564,15,00,000

V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-
A. REMUNERATION TO MANAGING DIRECTOR, WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS AND/OR MANAGER*:

SN. Particulars of Remuneration @

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

Total Amount

1. | Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,
1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit

- others, specify...

Bl

5. | Others, please specify
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act

NOT APPLICABLE
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@IrconSGTL had five Part-time Directors during the financial year 2019-20, nominated on the
Board by the holding company; do not draw any remuneration from the Company. No
sitting fee is paid to the Part-time Directors.

B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:

SN.

Particulars of Remuneration @

Name of Directors

Total
Amount

Independent Directors

Fee for attending board committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2) $

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

NOT APPLICABLE

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD):

(Amount in Rs.)

S.No.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO
Mr. Masood
Ahmad Najar

CFO
Mr. Sanjeev
Kumar Gupta

CS
Ms. Sakshi
Mehta

Total

Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

23,61,034

12,26,700

4,88,297

40,76,031

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

w

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit

others, specify...

Others, please specify

- Performance linked
incentive (PRP)

4,86,472

2,10,764

6,97,236

- Retirement benefits
(Pension, PF)

7,37,672

3,87,913

19,894

11,45,479

Total

35,85,178

18,25,377

5,08,191

59,18,746
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I. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeal made,
the Description | Penalty / [RD/ if any (give
Companies Punishment/ NCLT/ Details)
Act Compounding COURT]

fees imposed

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment NIL

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment NIL

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

NIL*

Punishment

Compounding

* NIL Penalties have been levied on Company or its Directors or Other Officers and as such no
punishments have been awarded with zero applications being made by any of the Company
Representatives for Compounding of Offences under the Companies Act, 2013 or other applicable
laws and regulations.
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Date: 19.08.2020
Place: New Delhi

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited

Sd/-
S.L. Gupta
Chairman
DIN: 07598920
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FORM NO. AOC-2

ANNEXURE -C

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis

thereto

- NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis: As

follows:
Sl. | Name of the | Nature of Duration of Salient terms | Date of |[Amount
No | related party | contracts / contracts / of contracts / | approval [received/pai
and nature arrangements / | arrangement | arrangements | by the d as
of transactions s/ / BoD, if advances
relationship transactions | transactions, | any by
including the IrconSGTL,
value, if any if any (Rs. in
crores)
1. | Ircon a) | EPC EPC Work is | The Contract Not NIL
International Agreement | 30 months has been Applicable
Limited dated from the executed for a
(Ircon) 30.11.2015 | appointed value of Rs
Y date intimated | 642 Crores for
Holding by NHAI or execution of
Company. handing over | development
of land by of project
IrconSGTL. highway.
b) | Execution a) Addendum | Addendum No.
to two 1 enteredon | 1, 2tothe
Addendums | 29.03.2016 EPC
to EPC b) Addendum | Agreement
2 entered on | have been
Agreement | 55 072016 | executed for
(These incorporation
addendums of revised
would be payment
forming part sch(.ad.ule
of orginal ref[a_lnlng the
EPC original total
cost of the
agreement) project of the
value of Rs.
642 crore.
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Lease
Agreement

(Rent for
Use of
Office
Premises)

Date:Lease
Agreement
dated
27.06.2018
Duration: 3
years w.e.f.
01.07.2018

Rent: Lease
Rent @ 65 sq.
ft X Rs.297/-
per sq ft
chargeable on
monthly basis
Rs.19,305/-
considering
charges for
leased
premises
inside
corporate
office and
increment of
10% on
renewal.

Date: 19.08.2020
Place: New Delhi
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited

Sd/-
S.L. Gupta
Chairman

DIN: 07598920
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ANNEXURE - D

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company being a government entity focuses on adherence to “Corporate Governance
Measures” being adopted for effective business functioning and conduct of transactions in a
transparent manner. It strictly follows timely tested corporate functioning mechanisms and
doesn‘t believe in adhoc planning or decision making. Proper accountability is fixed on
Company officers ensuring adoption of due diligence and ethical and professional business
practices.

1. Philosophy of Company: Corporate functioning is programmed with Statutory Compliances
and governance structure is aligned with maximizing profitability in line with protection of
stakeholder's interest.

2. Board of Directors

2.1 Composition of Board:-

The Company has a non-executive board with its members as Mr. S.L. Gupta, Chairman,
Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal, Director, Mr. Rajendra Singh Yadav, Director, Mr. Surajit Dutta,
Director, and Mr. D.K. Sharma, Director.

Part-time Directors, nominated on the Board by the holding company, do not draw any
remuneration from the Company. No sitting fee is paid to the part-time directors.

The Directors of the Company have attended the Board Meetings in a regular manner
offering productivity and valuable insights for the organizational functions.

2.2 The details of directors as on the date of this report are given below:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR MEMBERSHIPS OF BOD / COMMITTEES
(As on the date of this report)

Directors Whole-time / Directorships |Committee Memberships held
Part-time / held in in Companies / Body
Independent Companies/ Corporates (including
Body IrconSGTL)
Corporates
(excluding
IrconSGTL)

Mr. S.L. Gupta Part — time 8 NIL 3
[DIN 07598920] Chairman [Ircon, IrconPBTL,
IrconDHHL,
CERL, CEWRL,
MCRL,
IrconVKEL, and
BRPL]

As Chairman| As Member
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Mr. Ashok Kumar| Part-time 5 2 2
Goyal Director [ISTPL, IrconISL,
[DIN 05308809] IrconPBTL,
IrconDHHL, and
IrconVKEL]
Mr. Rajendra Singh| Part—time 3 2 2
Yadav Director [IrconPBTL,
[DIN 07752915] IrconDHHL and
IrconVKEL]
Mr. Surajit Dutta Part — time 3 1 2
[DIN 06687032] Director [lIrconPBTL,
IrconDHHL and
IrconVKEL]
Mr. D.K. Sharma Part — time 3 NIL NIL
[DIN 08556821] Director [IrconPBTL,
IrconDHHL and
IrconVKEL]

DIRECTORS WHO CEASED TO HOLD OFFICE
(During 2019-20 and thereafter till the date of this report)

Directors Whole-time / Directorships Committee Memberships
Part-time / held in held in Companies / Body
Independent | Companies/ Body Corporates (including
Corporates IrconSGTL)
I&i’é‘:gg‘?& As Chairman | As Member
Mr. Deepak Sabhlok| Part —time 9 1 5
[DIN 03056457] Chairman [Ircon, ISTPL,
IrconPBTL,
IrconDHHL, CERL,
CEWRL, MCRL,
IrconVKEL, and
BRPL]
Mr. Anand Kumar Part —time 3 2 3
Singh Director [IrconPBTL,
[DIN 07018776] IrconDHHL and
IrconVKEL]
Ms. Anupam Ban Part —time 3 1 NIL
[DIN 07797026] Director [IrconPBTL,
IrconDHHL and
IrconVKEL]
Ms. Bhuvaneshwari Part —time 1 2 NIL
Krishnan Director [IrconPBTL]
[DIN 07486148]

Notes:

1. The number of Directorships is within the maximum limit of:
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-20 Companies (out of which maximum 10 public companies) under the Companies
Act, 2013.

2. Directors are not related to each other.

Directors do not have any pecuniary relationships or transactions with the Company.

4. The Directorships / Committee memberships are based on the latest disclosure
received from Directors.

5. Committee memberships of Audit Committees of all Public Limited Companies have
been considered.

6. The number of committee memberships of directors is within the maximum limit of
ten including the permitted limit of five chairmanships under the DPE Corporate
Governance Guidelines, 2010 (DPE Guidelines). Only Audit Committee is to be
counted for the said limit.

7. Full names of Companies referred:

a) Ircon — Ircon International Limited

b) IrconISL — Ircon Infrastructure Services Limited

c) ISTPL — Ircon-Soma Tollway Private Limited

d) IrconPBTL - Ircon PB Tollway Limited

e) IrconDHHL — Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
f) CERL - Chhattisgarh East Railway Limited

g) CEWRL - Chhattisgarh East-West Railway Limited

h) MCRL — Mahanadi Coal Railway Limited

i) IrconVKEL - Ircon Vadodara Kim Expressway Limited
j) BRPL — Bastar Railway Private Limited

w

3. BoD Meetings and Attendance during 2019-20:

a) The Board of Directors met 7 times during the financial year (FY) 2019-20 on:
2" May 2019, 29" July 2019, 23™ August 2019, 19" September 2019, 24"
October 2019, 27" January 2020 and 5" February 2020.

b) Leave of absence was granted in terms of section 167(1)(b) of the Companies
Act, 2013.
c) Details of attendance of the Directors and Company Secretary during 2019-20:
Directors No. of Board Meetings during Attended last Annual
2019-20 General
Held (during their Attended Meeting
respective tenures)
Mr. Deepak 5 5 YES
Sabhlok
Mr. Ashok Kumar 7 7 YES
Goyal
Mr. Anand Kumar 4 4 YES
Singh
Mr. Rajendra 6 5 YES
Singh Yadav
Ms. Anupam Ban 4 4 YES
Mr. S.L. Gupta 2 2 NO
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(i)
(ii)

Mr. Surajit Dutta 2 2 YES (As Nominee
Shareholder)
Mr. D.K. Sharma 4 0 NA

Ms. Sakshi Mehta, Company Secretary, attended all the 7 meetings held during the FY
2019-20.

Committees of BoD
Audit Committee

Terms of Reference

The paid-up share capital of the Company has been increased from Rs. 3 crores to Rs.
33 crores (w.e.f 18" March 2016) during the financial year 2015-16, which is 100% held
by Ircon. Consequently, in compliance of section 177 of Companies Act, 2013, the Board
of Directors constituted the Audit Committee at its meeting held on 17" October 2016.
The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee as specified in writing by the Board
which shall, inter alia, include,—

the recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of
auditors of the company;

review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness
of audit process;

(iii) examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;
(iv) approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with

(v)

related parties;
scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

(vi) valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;
(vii) evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
(viii) monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

41.2
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Audit Committee — Composition and Attendance:

The Audit Committee of the Board, consisting of three part-time Directors of the
Company, was originally constituted on 17" October 2016 with the approval of Board of
Directors adopting the terms of reference. The Audit Committee is reconstituted as and
when there has been a change in part-time directors nominated by holding company.

The composition of the Committee as on 27" January 2020 was:

Mr. Surajit Dutta - Part-time Director as Chairman
Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal - Part-time Director as Member
Mr. R.S. Yadav - Part-time Director as Member

Ms. Sakshi Mehta, Company Secretary, is the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee met 6 times during the financial year 2019-20 on 2nd May 2019,
29th July 2019, 23rd August 2019, 24th October 2019, 27th January 2020 and 5"
February 2020. The attendance details of said meetings are:
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Member No. of Audit Committee Meetings during
2019-20
Held (during their Attended
respective tenures)

Mr. Anand Kumar Singh 3 3
Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal 6 6
Mr. Rajendra Singh Yadav 4 3
Ms. Bhuvaneshwari 1 1
Krishnan

Mr. D.K. Sharma 2 0
Mr. Suraijit Dutta 2 2

Ms. Sakshi Mehta, Company Secretary, attended all the Audit Committee meetings
held during 2019-20.

In pursuance of MCA’s exemption notification and exemption granted by DPE
from the compliance of DPE Corporate Governance Guidelines, Audit
Committee has been rescinded by the Board w.e.f. 5" February 2020.

4.2 Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
As per section 178 of the Companies Act 2013, read with rule 6 of the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, provides for constitution of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee in all public companies with a paid up
capital of Rs. 10 crores or more, or having turnover of Rs.100 Crores or more, or
having in aggregate, outstanding loans or borrowings or debentures or deposits
exceeding Rs.50 Crores or more. The Committee shall consist of three or more non-
executive directors out of which not less than one half shall be independent directors.

Further, as per DPE Guidelines on Remuneration Committee for Central Public
Sector Enterprise issued vide DPE OM dated 14" May 2010, it is stated that each
CPSE shall constitute a Remuneration Committee comprising at least three directors,
all of whom should be part-time directors (i.e. Nominee or Independent Directors),
and that the Committee should be headed by an Independent Director.

The Company has constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
on 17™ October 2016 pursuant to section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 and para
5.1 of the DPE CG Guidelines, 2010.

The composition of the Committee as on 27" January 2020 was:

(i) Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal - Part-Time Director as Chairman
(i) Mr. R.S. Yadav - Part-Time Director as Member
(ii) Mr. Suraijit Dutta - Part-Time Director as Member

Ms. Sakshi Mehta, Company Secretary, is the Secretary of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.
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Terms of Reference

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) shall-

o Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down,

e Recommend to the Board their appointment and removal,

e Carry out evaluation of every director‘s performance.

e Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications,
independence of a director and

e Recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees.

positive attributes and

There was no NRC meeting held during the FY 2019-20.

In pursuance of MCA’s exemption notification and exemption granted by DPE from
the compliance of DPE Corporate Governance Guidelines, Nomination &
Remuneration Committee (NRC) has been rescinded by the Board w.e.f. 5™
February 2020.

5. General Body Meetings
The details of general meetings held during last five years i.e. 2015-16, 2016-17, 2017-18,
2018-19 & 2019-20 are tabulated as below:
Table II: General Meetings

Sr. | Type of Date of Time Location For Transacting

No | Shareholder Meeting Ordinary Special Business

. Meeting Business

1. | First 16" June | 1300 | Company's NA Borrowing Powers of
Extraordinary | 2015 Hours | Registered Company in excess of
General Office, paid-up Share Capital
Meeting Delhi and Free Reserves u/s
(EGM) 180(1)(c) of Companies

Act, 2013

2. | First Annual | 27" 1200 | Company's 3 NA
General September | Hours | Registered
Meeting 2016 Office,
(AGM) Delhi

3. | Second 25" 1100 | Company's 2 NA
Annual September | Hours | Registered
General 2017 Office,
Meeting Delhi
(AGM)

4. | Third Annual | 25" 1230 | Company's 2 NA
General September | Hours | Registered
Meeting 2018 Office,
(AGM) Delhi

5. | Fourth 26" August | 1630 | Company's 2 Ratification of
Annual 2019 Hours | Registered Remuneration of Cost
General Office, Auditor of The
Meeting Delhi Company For The FY
(AGM) 2018-19 And 2019-20

NA denotes: Not Applicable
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6. Disclosures and Statutory Compliances:-

Adequate Disclosures pertaining to Director's interest, related party transactions,
maintenance of statutory registers have been taken and placed periodically before the Board
of Directors to take informed decisions, with the Board following a clear policy of specific
delegation and authorization of designated officers to handle the business matters. MCA
Filings with respect to disclosures, intimations, allotments and appointments have been
made in a time bound manner with no pending matters.

7. CEOI/CFO Certification

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have certified in writing with respect
to the truth and fairness of the financial statements, due compliances, and financial reporting
which was placed before the Board of Directors (placed as “Annexure — D-1” to this
Report).

8. Certificate for Compliance with Corporate Governance Guidelines

DPE Guidelines, 2010 prescribes a certificate to be obtained from the Statutory Auditors or
the Practicing Company Secretary for corporate governance guidelines followed by the
Company (Chapter 8: Report, Compliance and Schedule of Implementation — Clause 8.2:
Compliance).

The said certificate was obtained from the Practising Company Secretaries (PCS), Arun
Kumar Gupta and Associates, Company Secretaries, having office at 1005, Roots Tower,
Plot No. 7, District Centre, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi — 110092, for the Financial Year 2019-20, and
is attached herewith as ANNEXURE — “D-2".

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited

Sd/-
S L Gupta
Chairman
DIN: 07598920

Date: 19.08.2020
Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXURE - “D-1”

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
CERTIFICATION

We have reviewed the Financial Statements including the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit &
Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the Financial Year 2018-19 and to the best of our
knowledge and belief:-

(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statement that might be misleading;

(i) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(i) These are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal, or violative of the Company s General
Code of Conduct as agreed to be followed by the Directors and Senior Management of the
Company.

(iv) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the
Company pertaining to financial reporting. We have disclosed to the auditors deficiencies in
the design or operation of such internal controls of which we are aware and the steps we
have taken or propose to rectify these deficiencies.

(v) We have indicated to the Auditor any changes in Accounting Policies that may have been
effected during the year, and that the same have been disclosed in the Notes to the Financial
Statements; and

(vi) There was no instance of fraud of which we are aware nor there has been involvement of the
Management or an employee having a significant role in the Company‘s internal control
system over financial reporting.

Sd/- Sd/-
Mr. Masood Ahmad Najar Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Gupta
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Date: 24.06.2020
Place: New Delhi
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Annexure — “D-2”

ARUN KUMAR GUPTA & ASSOCIATES 1005, Roots Tower, Plot No. — 7,
COMPANY SECRETARIES District Centre, Laxmi Nagar,
Delhi — 110092

E-mail: csarungupta@gmail.com
Tel.: 011-45629812; Mobile: 9811835475

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE UNDER CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINES OF
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC ENTERPRISES (DPE), 2010

To

The Members of

Ircon Shivpuri GunaTollway Limited
C-4, District Centre, Saket,

New Delhi — 110017

In respect of the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance for the year ended 31
March, 2020, by Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited, a Government Company under section
2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013 (corresponding sections 2(18) and 617 of the Companies Act,
1956), as required by the Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by the Department of
Public Enterprises (DPE).

We have studied the Report on Corporate Governance of the said Company as approved by its
Board of Directors. We have also examined the relevant records and documents maintained by
the Company and furnished to us for our review in this regard.

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management.
Our examination was limited to review of procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an
audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statement of the Company.

We state there has been no investor grievance during the year against the Company as per the
records maintained by the Company.

We further comment that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.
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In our opinion and to the best of our information and on the basis of our review and according to
the information and explanation given to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the
mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance in all material respects as required by the
Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE),
except related to appointment of Independent Directors and submission of Quarterly Reports as
per the provisions of DPE Corporate Governance Guidelines, 2010. However it is understood that
as the Company is constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) got exemption for appointing
Independent Directors, submitting Quarterly report and other Compliance of Corporate
Governance Guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), vide its O.M. dated
11" July, 2019 and 8™ July, 2014, which was also confirmed by its holding Company i.e. Ircon
International Limited vide its e-mail dated 28" January, 2020. Subsequently Company revoked its
Audit Committee & Nomination & Remuneration Committee w.e.f 05" February, 2020.

It is further stated that the aforesaid opinion is based upon the submissions made by the
Company with supporting documents and correspondence files and the secretarial and other
statutory records maintained by the Company.

For ARUN KUMAR GUPTA &ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Sd/-

(Arun Kumar Gupta)
FCS - 5551

CP No- 5086
UDIN: - F005551B000579817

Place: New Delhi
Date: 14.08.2020

| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2019-20

37



| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2019-20

HEomsge

Annexure-E

l}s SORABH JAIN AND ASSOCIATES 248/2, Virender Nagar,

COMPANY SECRETARIES Lane No. 06, Janakpuri
New Delhi — 110058

E-mail: csjain5253@gmail.com

Tel.: 91-9811250907

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended March 31, 2020
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED

Plot No. C-4, District Centre Saket, New Delhi -110017.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliances of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by IRCON Shivpuri Guna
Tollway Limited (hereinafter called -the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the IRCON Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and
also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion,
the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31,
2020, generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by IRCON Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited for the financial year ended
on March 31, 2020, according to the provisions of:

i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA') and the rules made there
under;(Not Applicable to the Company)

ii.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there
under;(Not Applicable to the Company)

iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings;(Not Applicable to the Company during the
period);

38



HEomsge

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ( SEBI Act’):-

a.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;(Not applicable to the Company).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;(Not applicable to the Company).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;(Not applicable to the Company).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;(Not Applicable to
the Company).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008;(Not applicable to the Company).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;(Not applicable to the Company).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the Company) and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 1998;(Not applicable to the Company).

vi.  We further report that, having regards to the compliance system prevailing in the
company, on examination of the documents provided by the company, the company
has complied with the following laws applicable to the company:

a.

134

The Building and other Construction workers (Regulation of Employment and
Conditions of Services) Act, 1996;

Building and other Construction workers welfare Cess Act, 1996;
Environmental Laws, as applicable;

Labour Laws, as applicable.

We have also examined compliance with the Secretarial Standard | and Secretarial Standard
Il issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) were applicable to the
Company for the period under review.

We further report:

That the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with only Non-Executive
Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
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That adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent adequately in advance and a system exists for seeking
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting. Decisions at the Board Meetings, as
represented by the management, were taken unanimously.

That as per the explanations given to us and the representations made by the Management
and relied upon by us there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

That during the period under review, as explained and represented by the management,
there were no specific events/actions in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards etc., having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs.

For Sorabh Jain& Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
Sorabh Jain
Proprietor
M. No. A45034
C.P. No. 16489
UDIN: A045034B000585741

Place: Delhi
Dated: 17.08.2020

| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2019-20

40



HEomsge

To,

ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Members
IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
Plot No. C-4, District Centre Saket, New Delhi -110017.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, We have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

Since disruptions caused by Government imposed lockdown and social distancing
norms being implemented in the country due to COVID-19, we have only been able
to examine the records from the system, and further original / physical records and
supporting documents could not be verified. The management has provided us an
access to the scanned copies of the various documents through mail which further
been removed from the cloud by the company.

For Sorabh Jain & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
Sorabh Jain
Proprietor
M. No. A45034
C.P. No. 16489
UDIN: A045034B000585741

Place: Delhi
Dated: 17.08.2020
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AJAY K. JAIN & Co. D-119, Preet Vihar
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Delhi- 110092, India
Tel: 011 22436981, 22544476
Mob. : 9810121292, 9810121293
E-mail: akjainco87@gmail.com
team.akjainco@gmail.com
ca_arpana@yahoo.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS,
IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED,
NEW DELHI

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of M/s IRCON Shivpuri
Guna Tollway Limited (the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31%,
2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the cash flow statement for the period then ended,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

(hereinafter referred to as -the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
theafore said standalone financial statements give the information required by The Companies
Act, 2013 (4he Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards (-tad AS”) specified under section 133 of the Act and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2020.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India(ICAl) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules

made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
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these requirements and the ICAl‘s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone

financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report
Thereon

The Company‘s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.

The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and

Analysis, Board's Report including Annexure to Board‘'s Report, Business Responsibility

Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, if applicable but does not

include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and

we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the

course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company‘s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India including
the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting

process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
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exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease

to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the

financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during ouraudit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

We draw attention to Note No. 38 of Financial statements which describe the management’s
assessment of financial impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic
situation, for which a definitive assessment of the impact in the subsequent period is

dependent on the circumstances as they evolve. Our opinion is not modified in this respect.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (-the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure

A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
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2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, and theStatement of Cash

Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books ofaccount.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of theAct.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company‘s internal financial

controls over financial reporting.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in

accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

Section 197 shall not apply to a Government Company, vide notification no. GSR 463(E)
dated 5" June, 2015.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with 143(3)(j), as amended by Companies (Audit & Auditors)
Amendment Rules,2017,in  our opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which have impact on its

financial position in its Ind AS Financial Statements.

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There are no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
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Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

As required by Section 143 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per directions and sub
directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, we report the compliance

thereto vide -Annexure —C” attached to this report.

Date : 24/06/2020 FOR AJAY K. JAIN & CO.
Place : Delhi (Chartered Accountants)
Reg No. :007118N

Sd/-
CA. AJAY KUMAR JAIN
Partner, FCA
M.No. : 085994
UDIN : 20085994AAAACH1291
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Reports under The Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (CARO 2016) for
the year ended on 31st March 2020

ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENTAUDITOR’S REPORT
(This is the annexure referred to in Para 1 of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our Report of even date)

(1) In Respect of Fixed Assets

(a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at year end; No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The company does not hold any immovable property therefore this clause does
not apply to the company.

(2) In Respect of Inventories
The company does not have inventory at the year end. Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3(ii) of the companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to
the company.

(3) Compliance under section 189 of The Companies Act, 2013
As informed, the company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to
companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
(a) Not Applicable
(b) Not Applicable

(c) Not Applicable

(4) Compliance under section 185 and 186 of The Companies Act , 2013
As informed, the company has not made transaction for loans, investments,

guarantees, and security provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013.

(5) Compliance under section 73 to 76 of The Companies Act, 2013 and Rules
framed thereunder while accepting Deposits

As informed, the company has not accepted any Deposits during the year.
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(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2019-20

Maintenance of cost records

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts relating to materials, labour and
other items of cost maintained by the company pursuant to the Rules made by the
Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and we are of the opinion that prima facie
the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.

Deposit of Statutory Dues

(a) The company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax,
sales-tax, service tax, gst, cess and any other statutory dues applicable to it.

(b) According to the records of the Company, there are no dues of Income tax,
sales tax, service tax, gst and cess that have been not been deposited on account
of any dispute.

Repayment of Loans and Borrowings

As informed, the company has not defaulted in repayment of any loans or
borrowings to the Ircon International Limited (IRCON). However, the Company does
not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution, banks or debenture
holders.

Utilization of Money Raised by Public Offers and Term Loan For which they
Raised

The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer {including debt instruments) and term loans. Hence this clause is not
applicable.

Reporting of Fraud During the Year

Based on our audit procedures and the information and explanation made available
to us no such fraud noticed or reported during the year.

Managerial Remuneration

In view of the Government notification No. GSR 463 (E) dated 05/06/2015
government companies are exempt from the applicability of section 197 of the

companies act 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(xi) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

Compliance by Nidhi Company Regarding Net Owned Fund to Deposits Ratio
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(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

As per information and records available with us the company is not Nidhi
Company.

Related party compliance with Section 177 and 188 of companies Act — 2013

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions entered into with the Related Parties are in compliance with section
177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 wherever applicable and details have
been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting
standard.

Compliance under section 42 of Companies Act - 2013 regarding Private
placement of Shares or Debentures

According to the information and explanations given to us and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

Compliance under section 192 of Companies Act — 2013

The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with it, Hence this clause is not applicable.

Requirement of Registration under 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act.

Date : 24.06.2020 FOR AJAY K. JAIN & CO.
Place : Delhi (Chartered Accountants)
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Sd/-
CA. AJAY KUMAR JAIN
Partner, FCA
M.No. : 085994
UDIN : 20085994AAAACH1291
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ANNEXURE-B TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT
(This is the annexure referred to in Para 2(f) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our Report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 ofSection
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IRCON Shivpuri
Guna Tollway Limited (-the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit

of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company‘'s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financialcontrols based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated inthe Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued bythe Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operatingeffectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence tocompany‘s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds anderrors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation ofreliable

financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
overfinancial reporting based on our audit.We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
(the-Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribedunder section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the GuidanceNote require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit toobtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financialreporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all materialrespects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy ofthe
internal  financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness.Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included

obtaining anunderstanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
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the risk that amaterial weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness ofinternal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over

financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
providereasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accountingprinciples. A company's internal financial control over financial

reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the

company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a

material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
includingthe possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes inconditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
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In our opinion, the company needs to strengthen the effective operations of internal financial
controls system over financial reporting as at March 31, 2020 with respect to specific
important issues which highlight that the implementation of financial controls are not truly in

place. We emphasis on the following weakness observed

I.  As per the article no 32 of concession agreement with NHAI, “The concessionaire
shall effect & maintain at its own cost, during the construction period & the operation
period, such insurances for such maximum sums as may be required under the
financing agreements, & the applicable laws, & such insurances as may be

necessary & prudent in accordance with good industry practice.........

-As per above mentioned agreement IRCON SGTL shall be required to insure the project not
just during the construction period but also during the operation period. The project remained
uninsured during August 2018 to Dec 2019 (i.e., approx.16 Months, further it could have led
to huge losses. Internal Control regarding policies and insurance need to be strengthened to

avoid occurrence of such lapses in future.

. Itis strongly recommended to place a suitable system of reconciliation of GST ITC in
form GSTR2A with books of account from time to time, so as to ensure that all GST
paid by IRCON SGTL is being duly deposited in Govt. account by the

suppliers/service providers.

Date :24.06.2020 FOR AJAY K. JAIN & CO.
Place : Delhi (Chartered Accountants)
Reg No. :007118N

Sd/-
CA. AJAY KUMAR JAIN
Partner, FCA
M.No. : 085994
UDIN : 20085994AAAACH1291
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Annexure-C

Compliance Certificate

We have conducted the audit of accounts of 4RCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
” for the year ended march 31, 2020 in accordance with the directions / sub directions issued
by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under section 143(5) of The Companies Act,
2013 and certify that we have complied with all the directions / sub directions issued to us

given in Annexure —1.

Date : 24.06.2020 FOR AJAY K. JAIN & CO.
Place : Delhi (Chartered Accountants)
Reg No. :007118N

Sd/-
CA. AJAY KUMAR JAIN
Partner, FCA
M.No. : 085994
UDIN :20085994AAAACH1291
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Annexure-1

Directions indicating the areas to be examined by 2019-20 issued by the Comptroller
& Auditor General of India under section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.

I. Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions
through IT system? If yes, the implications of processing of accounting transactions outside
IT system on the integrity of the accounts along with the financial implications, if any, may be

stated.

- As informed to us and on the basis of our examination, the company has in-
house system to process all the accounting transactions through Tally

Software system.

Il. Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts
/loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the company due to the company's inability to repay

the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated.
- NO

lll. Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes from central/ state agencies
were properly accounted for/ utilized as per its term and conditions? List the cases of

deviation.

- Not Applicable

Date : 24.06.2020 FOR AJAY K. JAIN & CO.
Place : Delhi (Chartered Accountants)
Reg No. :007118N

Sd/-

CA. AJAY KUMAR JAIN
Partner, FCA
M. No. : 085994

UDIN :20085994AAAACH1291
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS,
IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED,
NEW DELHI

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of M/s IRCON Shivpuri Guna
Tollway Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31% 2020, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, the cash flow statement for the period then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone
financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (*Ind
AS”) specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s
Report including Annexure to Board’s Report. Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and
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Shareholder’s Information, if applicable but does not include the standalone financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if; individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
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evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal
control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial conlrols relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial

controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

e [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events ina manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matters

We draw attention to Note No. 38 of Financial statements which describe the management's assessment
of financial impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic situation, for which a definitive
assessment of the impact in the subsequent period is dependent on the circumstances as they evolve, Our
opinion is not modified in this respect.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in *Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity, and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules
2014..

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2020 from being appointed as a director interms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting,

2. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

Section 197 shall not apply to a Government Company, vide notification no. GSR 463(E)
dated 5" June, 2015.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
143(3)(j), as amended by Companies (Audit & Auditors) Amendment Rules,2017, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which have impact on its financial
position in its Ind AS Financial Statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.




iii. There are no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

As required by Section 143 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per directions and sub
directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General Of India, we report the compliance
thereto vide “Annexure —C” attached to this report.

Date : 24/06/2020 FOR AJAY K. JAIN & CO.
Place : Delhi (Chartered Accountants)
' Reg No. :007118N |
o R y
.r-/"" _d____._—--"'_"-._._._.
—

= Partner, FCA
M.No. : 085994
UDIN : 20085994AAAACH | 29 |
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Reports under The Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (CARO 2016) for the
year ended on 31st March 2020

ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENTAUDITOR’S REPORT
(This is the annexure referred to in Para | of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our

Report of even date)

(1

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

In Respect of Fixed Assets

(a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at year end ; No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

(c) The company does not hold any immavable property therefore this clause does not apply to the
company.

In Respect of lmfentories

The company does not have inventory at the year end. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the
companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the company.

Compliance under section 189 of The Companies Act, 2013

As informed, the company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(a) Not Applicable
(b) Not Applicable

(c) Not Applicable

Compliance under section 185 and 186 of The Companies Act , 2013

As informed, the company has not made transaction for loans, investments, guarantees, and security
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Compliance under section 73 to 76 of The Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed
thereunder while accepting Deposits

As informed, the company has not accepted any Deposits during the year.

63



(6)

0

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

Maintenance of cost records
We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts relating to materials, labour and other items of cost
maintained by the company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of

cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and we are of the opinion
that prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.

Deposit of Statutory Dues

(a) The company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales-tax, service tax, gst, cess and any other
statutory dues applicable to it.

(b) According to the records of the Company, there are no dues of Income tax, sales tax, service tax,gst
and cess that have been not been deposited on account of any dispute,

Repayment of Loans and Borrowings

As informed, the company has not defaulted in repayment of any loans or borrowings to the Ircon
International Limited (IRCON). However, the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any
financial institution, banks or debenture holders.

Utilization of Money Raised by Public Offers and Term Loan For which they Raised

The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including debt
instruments) and term loans. Hence this clause is not applicable

Reporting of Fraud During the Year

Based on our audit procedures and the information and explanation made available to us no such fraud
noticed or reported during the year.

Managerial Remuneration

In view of the Govermnment notification No. GSR 463 (E) dated 05/06/2015 government companies are
exempt from the applicability of section 197 of the companies act 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(xi) of the
order is not applicable to the company.

Compliance by Nidhi Company Regarding Net Owned Fund to Deposits Ratio

As per information and records available with us the company is not Nidhi Company

Related party compliance with Section 177 and 188 of companies Act - 2013

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered into
with the Related Parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 wherever
applicable and details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable
accounting standard.
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(14) Compliance under section 42 of Companies Act - 2013 regarding Private placement of

Shares or Debentures

According to the information and explanations given to us and to the best of our knowledge and belief, the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company. !

(15) Compliance under section 192 of Companies Act — 2013
The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with it,
Hence this clause is not applicable.

(16) Requirement of Registration under 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

The company is not required to be registered under section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India Act.

Date : 24.6.2020 FOR AJAY K. JAIN & CO.
Place : Delhi (Chartered Accountants)

Partner, FCA
M.No. : 085994
UDIN : 20085994AAAAC H 12 9)
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ANNEXURE-B TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT
(This is the annexure referred to in Para 2(f) of *‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our
Report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IRCON Shivpuri Guna Tollway
Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the" Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
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(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 1o permit preparation of Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the company needs to strengthen the effective operations of internal financial controls

system over financial reporting as at March 31, 2020 with respect to specific important issues which

highlight that the implementation of financial controls are not truly in place. We emphasis on the following

weakness observed

I As per the article no 32 of concession agreement with NHAI, “The concessionaire shall effect &

maintain at its own cost, during the construction period & the operation period, such insurances
for such maximum sums as may be required under the financing agreements. & the applicable
laws, & such insurances as may be necessary & prudent in accordance with good indusiry
practice......... g
-As pe rabove mentioned agreement IRCON SGTL shall be required to insure the project not just
during the construction period but also during the operation period. The project remained
uninsured during August 2018 to Dec 2019 (i.e., approx. 16 Months, further it could have led to
huge losses. Internal Control regarding policies and insurance need to be strengthened to avoid
occurrence of such lapses in future.

II. It is strongly recommended to place a suitable system of reconciliation of GST ITC in form
GSTR2A with books of account from time to time, so as to ensure that all GST paid by IRCON
SGTL is being duly deposited in Govt. account by the suppliers/service providers.

Date : 24.06 .2020 FOR AJAY K. JAIN & CO.
Place : Delhi 0@ (Chartered Accountants)
£ < Reg No. :007118N _

Partner, FCA
M.No. : 085994
UDIN : 20085994AAAACH |24
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Annexure-C

Compliance Certificate

We have conducted the audit of accounts of “IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED " for the
year ended march 31, 2020 in accordance with the directions / sub directions issued by the Comptroller &
Auditor General of India under section 143(5) of The Companies Act, 2013 and certify that we have
complied with all the directions / sub directions issued to us given in Annexure —1.

Date : 24.06.2020 FOR AJAY K. JAIN & CO.
Place : Delhi .~ (Chartered Accountants)
—\ Reg No. :007118N . J
.__f’{\'\\ I ] l_ ‘ /, -* /
BT
NS /2 —
e .
G cp psAY JAIN

Partner, FCA
M.No. : 085994
UDIN : 20085994AAAACH 12 ¥
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Annexure-|

Directions indicating the areas to be examined by 2019-20 issued by the Comptroller &
Auditor General of India under section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.

I. Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions through IT
system? If yes, the implications of processing of accounting transactions outside IT system on the
integrity of the accounts along with the financial implications, if any, may be stated.

- As informed to us and on the basis of our examination, the company has in-house system to
process all the accounting transactions through Tally Software system.

1. Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts
/loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the company due to the company’s inability to repay the loan?
If yes, the financial impact may be stated.

* NO

11, Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes from central/ state agencies were properly
accounted for/ utilized as per its term and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

- Not Applicable
Date : 24.06.2020 FOR AJAY K. JAIN & CO.
Place : Delhi i (Chartered Accountants)

CA. AJAY KUMAR JAIN
Partner, FCA
M. No. : 085994 ,
UDIN : 20085994AAAA € H 127
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
(CIN- U45400DL2015G0I280017)
BALANCE SHEET As at 31st March 2020

ieansy

As peor our Report of even date attached

For Alay K. Jain & Co /- S N[ (shyam Lal Gupta)
¢ Chairman
07598920
( ar)
Chi e

UPIN— 20025 Y AARAACH |27

urajit Dutta)
Director
DIN-06687032

e W

,/{Sa‘nnw Kumar Bupta)

Chief Financlal

(in Rs. crore)
Particulars Nota No. As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019
| [ASSETS
1 |Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and equipment 3 0.06 0.07
(b) Intangible Assets 4 650.88 692.41
(c) Intangible assets under development 4 - -
(d) Financlal Assets
(i) Others 5 0.15 011
_'5& Deferrad tax assets (Net) -] - 0.07
| Non-current assets 651.09 £92.66 |
2 |Current assets
(a) Financial Assets 7
(i) Trade Receivables 71 0.14 0.70
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 1.2 33z 8.61
(iil) Loans 7.3 - -
(iv) Others 74 042 0.03
(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) ] 0758 191
(c) Other current assels ] 034 0.43
Total Current assets 4.97 12,68
———— =
Total Assets 656.06 705.34
] HEQU!T\' AND LIABILIMES
1 |Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 10 150.00 150,00
(b) Other Equity 1 (62.19) (31.38)
Total Equity 87.81 11864 |
2 |Liabllities
(i) [Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilties 12
() Borrowings 121 540,87 516.66
(ii) Trade Payables 122 - -
- Dues of Micro Enterprisas and
Smaill Enterprises
- Total outstanding dues other than
of Micro Enterprises and Small
Enterprises
(i) Other financial abilties a .
(b) Provislons " L
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilties Net 6 - 2
{d) Other Non-Current Liabilties - _ v
Total Non-current liabllities 540.87 516 92
{li) [Current llabliities
(a) Financial Liabilities 13
(1) Borrowings 131 23.28 44 93
(if) Trade payables 132
- Dues of Micro Enterprises
and Small Enterprises §
- Total outstanding dues
Other than of Micro Enterprises and 1.08 20.83
Smail Enterprises
(iily Other financial liabilities 14 235 244
(b) Other current iabilities 15 0.67 1.83
(¢) Provisions - -
(d) Current Tax liability (Net) - -
Total Curront liabilities 27.38 70.03 |
Total Equity and Liabilities 656.06 705.34
L. | Summary of Significant Accounting policies 1-2
IV. | Notes forming part of financlal stalements 22-38

For and on behalf of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited

(Rajendrs Singh Yadav )
Director
DIN-07762815

—_—

W

’}uu H’ﬁ
ﬁhhl Mehta )
cer Company Secretary
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
(CIN- U45400DL2015G0I280017)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2020

Weanmsye

(In Rs. crore)
For the year ended 31st |For the year ended 31st
Sty N o March 2020 March 2019
. |Revenue :
Revenue from operations 16 94.44 149.75
Il. |Other income 17 0.44 D43
. Total iIncome (I + II) 94,88 150.18
IV. |Expenses:
Project Expenses 18 29.58 101.60
Employee benefits expenses 18 1.60 1186
Finance cosis 20 52.84 43 49
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 21 41.55 34.40
Other Expenses 18 0.04 0.08
Total Expenses (IV). 125.61 180.71
V. |Loss Belore exceptional ltems and Tax (ll - IV) (30.73) (30.53)
VIl. |Loss before tax (V + VI) (30.73) (30.53)
VI, |Tax expenses:
(1) Current tax 6
- For the Period B -
- For earlier years (net) 0.03 -
(2) Deferred tax (net) 0.07 0.10
Total Tax Expense 0.10 0.10
IX |Loss for the period from continuing operation (VIl - VIll) (30.83) (30.63)
X \mmmm_mﬂm
A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(i) Income Tax relating to Iterns that will not be reclassified X
to profit or loss *
B. (1) tems that will be reclassified to profit or loss = =
() Income Tax relating to ems that will be reclassified to Y =
profit or loss
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX +X)
Xl |{Comprising profit/(Loss) and other comprehensive (30.83) (30.63)
income for the year, net of tax)
Xl |Earnings Per Equity Share;
(For Continuing Operation)
(1) Basic ( Absolute Value in INR) 30 (2.08) (2.04)
(2) Diluted ( Absolute Value in INR) (2.08) (2.04)
Face Value Per Equity Share 10.00 10.00
As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Ircon Shivpurl Gu Iway Limited
For Ajay K, Jain & Co (Shyam Lal Gupta) (Surdjit Dutta) (Rajendra Singh Yadav )
Cc Accountants Chairman Director Director
FR 7118N DIN- 07598820 DIN-08687032 DIN-07752915
(. — ‘
(CA Jain) an ™~ f "E
Partner , s jar) (Sanjeav Kumar Gupta) Sakshi Mehta )
Mo 085004 e Officer Chief Fi ia| Officer Company Secrelary

Place . New Delhi
Date, 2Y —o6t-20210
WV — 2D PYITY AR ACH 129
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
(CIN- U45400DL2015GOL280017)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31at MARCH 2020

iGomspe

{in Rs. crore)

Particulars

As at 318l March 2020

As st 318t March 2019

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before taxation

Adjustment for :

Exchange difference on lation of Foreign O

Aciuarial gain / (loss) on remessursment of defined benefil plan
Depreciation, amariizelion end impairment
Amortisation of premium on inveatment
Impairment of Inventmeant

Finance Cost

Profit on sale of assets (nat)

Profit on Sale of Invesiments

Intarast Income

Dividend income

Effect of Exchange dif on fransk
Cash Equivalents

of Foreign Currency Cash &

(30.73)

(0.30)

Operating Profit before Current /Non-Current Assets and Llanilities

"

47,02

Adjustment for :

D /0 ] in Trade Receivabl

! Financial Assets - Loans

Dacraasa / (Increasa) in Inventofias

Decrease | (Increase) In Other Assels & Financial Assets
[ ) in Trade Payab

(Decrease) / incremse in Other Liabilities, Financial Liabiities & Provisions

055

(0,36)
(19.74)

(088)

17.01

(0.02)
(4.10)

138

2)

20.41)

1w

Cash generatod from operations
Income Tax Paid (net)

(142)

479
a7

61.29

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

4.6

61.29

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Proparty, Plant snd Equipment including CWIP

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipments & intangitle Assets

Intarost Received

Dividend Recalved

Invastment In Equity Shares

{investment) / Maturity of Bank Deposits (heving maturty of more than 3
months)

(0.01)

046

(0.08)
(44 25)

0.26

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(44.07)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Loan From IRCON (Holding Co.)

Repaymeni of Loan lo IRCON (Holding Co.)

Firaf D { Including D 1 DI Taw) paia
interim Dividend ( including Dividend Di Tax) paid
Payment of Fee for increass in Aulhorised Capital
Borrowing Cost

| Payment to DIPAM for Buy Back of Shares

143 48)

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

C)

(7.89)

Effect of Exchange diff on
| Cosh Equivalents

of Foreign Currency Cash &

o)

NET DECREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

(A+8+C+D)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (OPENING)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (CLOSING)

(E)
(F)

NET INCREASE / IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT

Note . 1. The above Cash flow Statement has been prepared under Ihe “indirect Melhod as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 7 on Statemant of Cash
Fiows

2. Figures in brackets represent outflow of cash

3 Figures of ihe previous year have been regrouped / recasied wherever nacessary,

As per our Report of even date attached

Place New Delhi
Oate- _2U=0( ~ 2020

WOV - 20D P FPYAARACH 12G)

(Surajit Dutta)
Direclor
DIN-06687032

mmummdm(ﬁ}nmnmyum

e

Chairman
DIN- 07588920

‘-
Mnhu 1
ifﬁf;‘ % Cl‘h!l' anunl

{Rajendra Singh Yacav |

Director
OIN-CW?&ZOL':
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
(CIN- U454000DL2015G0I28001T)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318t MARCH 2020

A. Equity Share Capital
For the year ended 31st March, 2019

iconspe

[Rs. In crore

|Particulars

Amount

Balance as at 01 April, 2018

150.00

{Changes in equity share capilal during the year

Balance as at 31 March, 2018

150.00

c in share d

the year

Bal, as at 31 March, 2020

150.00

B. Other Equity
For the year ended 31st March, 2018

(Rs. In crors)

Resarves & Surplus

Other Comprehansive Income|

s o General

Reserves

Retained
Earnings

Capital
Reserve

Exchange differences on
tranelating the financial
statement of a foreign

operation

Total

os ot 1 2018 - .73

0.73

Changes in accounting policy or prior

Balance as at 1 April, 2018

(0.73)

(Rostated)
| Profit for the year -

(30.63)

|Othar Comprehensive Income _

Remeasurment of Defined Banafit

|Plans
Foreign Exchange transtation

Total Comprehensive Incoma for
the period

(30.63)

Dividend Distribution Tax

Balance as at March 31, 2019

For the yoar ended 31st March, 2020

{Rs. In crors)

Reserves & Surplus

Other Comprehensive Incoma

Particulars oed

Reserves Earnings

Capital
Redemption
Reserve

Exchange differences on
transiating the financial
statement of a forsign

operation

Total

lance as at 1 2018 - [31.36)]
Changes in accounting policy or prior 2
EImors 3
Balance as at 1 April, 2019

(Restated) ; (31.36)|

(31.36)

[Profit for the year (Restated)_ :

(30.83)]

(30.83)

IMM
Remeasurment of Defined Banefit

Plans
Foraign Exchange transiation

differance
Total Comprehensive Incoma for 10.83
the period e

(30.83)|

Dividends Paid " a

Dividend Distribution Tax -

|Balance as at March 31, 2020 (62.19)

(82.18)

As per our Report of even date attached

. (8hyam Lal Gupta)
SN2\ chaman
DiN- 075880920

medmhwlﬂumolbmm

it Dutta)

Director
DIN-0B687032

(Rajendra

ngh Yadav }
clor

DIN-07752815

WUF@

Sakshi Mehta )
Company Secrelary

- L W
/f;‘-qm Gupla)
Chief Financidl Officer

Place : New Delhi
Date: 24 —6 [ —2010
UV - 20D PSTPY ARNACH)29)
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1. Corporate Information

Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited
domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of companies Act 2013 applicable in
India. The company came into existence when, Ircon International Limited has been awarded the
work of ‘Four Laning of Shivpuri - Guna Section of NH-3 from km 236.000 to km 332,100 (Stage -
1) in the state of Madhya Pradesh on DBFOT basis in accordance with the terms and conditions
in the concession agreement by National Highway Authority of India (NHAI). In pursuance the
provisions of ‘Request for Proposal’, the selected bidder ‘Ircon International Limited’ has formed
a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) named Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited (IrconSGTL) as
wholly owned subsidiary and incorporated under Companies Act, 2013 on 12th May 2015.
Accordingly, SPV has signed the Concession Agreement with NHAI on 15th June 2015. The
concession period of 20 years commenced on 25th Jan 2016 i.e. Appointed Date notified by the
National Highway Authority of India. The registered office of the company located at C-4, District
Centre, Saket, and NewDelhi- 110017.

The presentation and functional currency of the company is Indian Rupees (INR). Figures in
financial statements are presented in crore, by rounding off upto two decimals except for per
share data and as otherwise stated,

2. Summary of Significant Policies
21 Basis of preparation

i.  The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and
presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS
compliant Schedule I11), as applicable to the financial statements.

il. The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following accrual
system of accounting. The company has adopted the historical cost basis for assets and
liabilities, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair
value:

* Provisions, where the effect of time value of money is material are measured at

present value
« Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

2.2 Current vs non-current classification

. The company presents assets and liabllities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-
current classification.

ii. Anassetis treated as current when it is:
e Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating

cycle
» Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Q,\ NG
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vi.

Vii.

23

24.

* Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period,
« (Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The company classifies all other assets as non-current.
A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle..

Statement of Cash Flow

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of
past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and initia! measurement

« Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of
each item can be measured reliably. Property, Plant and Equipment are initially
stated at their cost.

Cost of assel includes
Purchase price, net of any trade discount and rebates.

(a) Borrowing cost if capitalization criteria is met.

(b) Cost directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets which incurred in bringing
asset to its working condition for the intended use.

(c) Incidental expenditure during the construction period is capitalized as part of the
indirect construction cost to the extent the expenditure is directly related to
construction or is incidental thereto.

(d) Present value of the estimated costs of dismantling & removing the items & restoring
the site on which it is located if recognition criteria are met.
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Freehold land is carried at historical cost.

ii. Subsequent Measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of
accumulated depreciation and accumulated losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure
is capitalized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the company and cost of the expenditure can be measured
reliably,

Cost of replacement, major inspection, repair of significant parts and borrowing costs
for long-term construction projects are capitalized if the recognition criteria are met.
The machinery spares are capitalized if recognition criteria are met.

ii. Depreciation and Useful lives

iv.  Derecognition
/ ?/ F/ V)
Il"’._:;-'

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment, excluding freehold land is provided
on straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as specified in
schedule |l of the Companies act, 2013 given as follows:

Particulars Useful lives (Years)
Building/flats residential/ 60
non-residential

Plant and Machinery 8-15

Survey instruments 10

Computers 36

Office Equipment’s 5-10

Furniture and fixtures 10

Caravans, Camps and temporary shed 3-5

Vehicles 8-10

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during
the period is charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is
available for use/disposed

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if
the cost of part is significant in relation to the total cost of the item and useful life of
that part is different from the useful life of remaining asset.

Property Plant and Equipment acquired during the period, individually costing up to
Rs. 5000/- are fully depreciated, by keeping Re. 1 as token value for identification.
However, Mobile phones provided to employees are charged to statement of profit
and loss irrespective of its value.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. “Ordinarily, the residual value of
an asset is up to 5% of the original cost of the asset" as specified in Schedule Il of
the Companies Act, 2013.
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« An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any significant part initially recognized
is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Capital work in progress

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects and
are carried at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Investment Properties

i. Recognition and Initial Measurement

» Investment Property is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the property will flow to the company and the cost of property can be
measured reliably.

* [nvestment property comprises completed property, property under construction and
property held under a lease that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
both, rather than for sale in the ordinary course of business or for use in production
or administrative functions. Investment properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs.

« Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of other
consideration given to acquire an asset at the time of its acquisition or construction
or, where applicable, the amount attributed to that asset when initially recognized in
accordance with the specific requirements of other Ind AS.

ii. Subsequent Measurement and Depreciation

* [nvestment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss, if any. Subsequent cost is added if recognition criteria
is met. The company depreciates building component of investment property on
straight line basis over 60 years from the date of original purchase/ completion of
construction. Freehold land and property under construction is not depreciated.

« Leasehold land acquired on perpetual lease is not amortized.

« The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of investment property
are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

« Though the company measures investment property using cost-based measurement,
the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair value determined
based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent
valuer applying valuation model acceptable internationally.

{Q/ ' &)
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iii.  Derecognition

Investment Properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or
when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds if any
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in statement of profit or loss in the
period of derecognition,

2.7  Intangible Assets

i.  Recognition and Initial Measurement

s Intangible Assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the company and cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if
capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for the intended use. Internally generated intangibles, excluding
capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is
reflected in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is
incurred. Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance
Sheet are disclosed as "Intangible assets underdevelopment”

ii. Subseguent Measurement and Amortization

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Software cost up to Rs. 1
Lakhs in each case is fully amortized in the period of purchase, by keeping Rs. 1 as
token value for identification.

* The cost of capitalized software is amortized over a period 36 months from the date
of its acquisition.

= Amortization on additions to/deductions from Intangible Assets during the period is
charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for
use/disposed

* Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial
year end.

iii.  Derecognition
* An Intangible Asset shall be derecognized on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-
recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net

disposal proceeds if any and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the asset is de-recognised.

iv.  Toll Collection Right (Toll Road Service Concession Arrangement)

% YSL (@



a) In respect of Public to Private Arrangements (PPA), on a Built-Operate-Transfer

b)

c)

d)

g)

h)

(BOT) basis, Intangible Assets i.e. Right to collect toll/tariff are recognised when the
company has been granted rights to charge a toll/tariff from the users of such public
services and such rights do not confer an unconditional right on the Company to
receive cash or another Financial Asset and when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the rights will flow to the company and the cost of the asset
can be measured reliably.

The company constructs or upgrades infrastructure (construction or upgrade
services) used to provide a public service and operates and maintains that
infrastructure (operation services) for a specified period of time. These arrangements
may include infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession
arrangement for its entire useful life.

Under the Concession Agreements, where the company has received the right to
charge users of the public service, such rights are recognised and classified as
“Intangible Assets” in accordance with Appendix C to Ind AS 115 - Service
Concession Arrangements.

Such right is not an unconditional right to receive consideration because the amounts
are contingent to the extent that the public uses the service and thus are recognised
and classified as intangible assels. Such an intangible asset is recognised by the
company at cost (which is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
for the construction services delivered) and is capitalized when the project is
complete in all respects and when the company receives the completion cenrtificate
from the authority as specified in the Concession Agreement.

An asset carried under concession arrangements is derecognised on disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal.

Service Concession Arrangements that meet the definition of an Intangible Asset are
recognised at cumulative construction cost. Till completion of construction of the
project, such arrangements are recognised as “Intangible Assets Under
Development” and are recognised at cumulative construction cost.

The estimated useful life of an intangible asset in a service concession arrangement
is the period from where the company is able to charge the public for use of
infrastructure to the end of the concession period.

Toll collection right is amortized using straight line method on pro-rata basis from the
date of addition or from the date when the right brought in to service to the expiry of
concession period.

Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date,
with the effect of change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The carrying value of intangible asset is reviewed for impairment annually or more

often if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable.

e
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2.8 Cash and cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent include cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term deposits with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
unrestricted cash and short-term deposits, as defined above as they are considered an integral
part of the Company's cash management.

2.9  Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

i. Provisions

a)

b)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognized as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, considering the risk and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions recognised by the Company include provisions for Maintenance,
Demobilization, Design Guarantee, Legal Cases, Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR), Onerous Contracts and others.

ii. Onerous contracts

a)

b)

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs
that the company cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received
under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting
from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation
or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. If the company has a contract that is
onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a
provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is
established, the company recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on
assets dedicated to that contract.

These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to refiect the
current best estimates.

iii. Contingent liabilities

a)

%% X'Q : &

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present
obligations that may but probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying
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iv.

210

iii.

vi.

vii.

economic benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably.
When there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which
likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no
provision or disclosure is made.

b) These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes and measures revenue from construction in accordance with
Ind AS -175'Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.

Transaction price (it does not involve significant financing component) is the price which is
contractually agreed with the customer for provision of services. Revenue is measured at the
transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation and it excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties i.e GST and is adjusted for variable considerations.

The nature of Company's contract gives rise to several types of variable consideration
including escalation and liquidated damages.

Any subsequent change in the transaction price is then allocated to the performance
obligations in the contract on the same basis as at contract inception.

The Company recognizes revenue for variable consideration when it is probable that a
significant reversal in the amount cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The
company estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on variable consideration using
the expected value or most likely amount method.

Consequently, amounts allocated to a satisfied performance obligation are recognised as
revenue, or as a reduction of revenue, in the period in which the transaction price changes.

The company satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes the revenue overtime, if any
of the following criteria is met:

» The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
entity's performance as the entity perform.

* The entity's performance creates or enhances an asset (for example, work in
progress) that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced or

= The entity's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
entity and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.




vii,

xi.

xii.

Xiii.

For performance obligation satisfied over time, the revenue recognition is done by
measuring the progress, using percentage completion method, towards complete
satisfaction of performance obligation. The progress is measured in terms of a proportion of
actual cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the performance
obligation.

Performance obligation is measured by applying input method. In the contracts where
performance obligation cannot be measured by input method, the output method is applied,
which faithfully depict the Company's performance towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation.

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved
either to the contract scope or contract price.

The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added
to the existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price.
Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while
those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if
additional services are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of existing
contract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.

Contract balances

» Contract assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods
or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring
goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional

* Trade receivables: A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of
consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before
payment of the consideration is due).

» Contract liabilities: A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to
a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If 2 customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability Is

recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the
contract

Revenue from toll collection

ﬁg = %’/ Yo
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The Company recognizes toil revenue as and when it collects at Transaction Price i.e usage fee
Which is exclusive of amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

xiv. Other income

« Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

* [nterest income is recognized using Effective Interest rate method.

* Miscellaneous income is recognized when performance obligation is satisfied and
right to receive the income is established as per terms of contract.

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the company assesses, whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount and the impairment
loss, including impairment on inventories are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or
have decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates the asset's or CGU's
recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been
a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior
period. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

2.12 Inventories

i.  Inventories (including scrap) are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
includes cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on First in First out
(FIFO) basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale,

ii.  Construction work-in-progress is valued at cost till such time the outcome of the job cannot
be ascertained reliably and at lower of cost or realizable value thereafter.

iii. The initial contract expenses on new projects for mobilization are recognized as
construction work-in-progress in the year of incidence, and pro rata charged to statement of
profit and loss of the project over the period at the same percentage as the stage of
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2.14

2.15

completion of the contract as at the end of reporting period. Site mobilization expenditure to
the extent not written off valued at cost.

In Cost Plus contracts, where the cost of all materials, spares and stores not reimbursable
as per the terms of the contract is shown as inventory valued as per (a) above.

Loose tools are expensed in the period of purchase.
Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the company incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are charged to statement of profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing
costs.

Employee Benefits
Short Term Employee Benefits

Employee benefits such as salaries, short term compensated absences, and
Performance Related Pay (PRP) falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the
service are classified as short-term employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such
benefits are expensed in the statement of profit and loss in in the period in which the
employee renders the related services.

Post-employment benefits & other Long Term Employee Benefits

The post employee benefits & other long term Employee Benefits are provided by Ircon
International Limited, the Holding Company, as the employees are on the deputation
from the Holding Company.

Leases

The company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That
is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in
exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The company recognizes lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.
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A. Right-of-use assets

= The company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease
(.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cosl, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.Leasehold land acquired
on perpetual lease is not amortized.

* |f ownership of the leased asset transfers to the company at the end of the lease term
or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using
the estimated useful life of the asset.

* The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

B. Lease liabilities

« Al the commencement date of the lease, the company recognizes lease liabilities
measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term,
The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the company and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the company exercising the option to terminate.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

» |n calculating the present value of lease payments, the company uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-
measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease
payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

« The company's lease liabilities are included in financial liabilities.
C. Short term lease and leases of low value assets

= The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term
leases contracts including lease of residential premises and offices (i.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
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exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. The
Company furthe also treats those leases as low value, whose lease term may be
over one year, but whose effect of non categorizing them as right to use assets and
charging them over the lease term vis-a-vis accounting them as an expense on a
year to year basis is not material. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

» The company has given adjustments for lease accounting in accordance with Ind AS
116 which came into effect on 1 April 2019, and all the related figures have been
reclassified/ regrouped to give effect to the requirements of Ind AS 116.

ii. Company as a lessor

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental 1o ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income
arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.

2.16 Current income tax

« Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with relevant tax
regulations. Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable
income for the period and is computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations.
Current income tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent it
relates to items recognised outside profit or loss in which case it is recognized
outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or
directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

« Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.17 Deferred tax

« Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at the reporting date.

» Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to

apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting

date.
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» Deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent it
relates to items recognised outside profit or loss, in which case is recognised outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity.

» Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

» The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

2.18 Operating Segment
Operating segments are reported in the manner consistent with the internal reporting

provided by the chief operating decision maker (CODM). Company has identified only one
reportable segment.

2.19 Earnings per Share
In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to
equity shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period
In determining diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity shareholders

and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effect of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.20 Foreign Currencies
i.  Functional and Presentation Currency
« |tems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also the functional and presentation

currency of the company.

ii. Transactions and Balances

* Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the
exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction.
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2.21

b)

vi.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the reporting date are converted to
functional currency using the closing rate (Closing selling rates for liabilities and closing
buying rate for assets). Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are
carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transactions.

Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items, or restatement as at
reporting date, at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded, are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise. These
exchange differences are presented in the statement of profit and loss on net basis.

Fair value measurement
The company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability the principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their econemic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
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hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

vii. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, if any. At
each reporting date, the company analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the company's
accounting policies.

ix. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets
and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and
the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

X. Above is the summary of accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related
disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

2.22 Dividend to equity holders

Annual Dividend distribution to the company's equity shareholders is recognized as liability
in the period in which dividend is approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend is
recognized as liability on approval by the Board of Directors. Dividend payable and
corresponding tax on dividend distribution is recognized directly in equity.

2.23 Financial instruments

« A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

i.  Financial assets
a) Initial recognition and measurement

« All Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus or minus transaction cost that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial
assets at fair value through profit and loss). Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

b) Subsequent measurement

e For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four
categories:

A. Debt instruments at amortised cost

* A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions
are met:
a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and
b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount

tstanding.
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After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instruments at FVTOCI

A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are
met:

a. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets, and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well
as al each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the
other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the company recognizes interest
income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the
statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and
loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest
income in statement of profit and loss using the EIR method.

Debt instruments at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does
not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is
classified as at FVTPL,

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The company makes such
election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If

the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value

changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of
investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equi

p
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Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e.,
all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and
credit risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost
e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b. Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

c. Lease receivables under Ind AS 116

d. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial
asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115

e. Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

f. Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on:

a. Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and

b. All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

The application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is
used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month
ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial asset. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime
ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized
as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under
the head ‘other expenses' in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet
presentation for various financial instruments is described below:
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» Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net
carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount

« Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in
the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

e Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVOCI, the
expected credit losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet, which
remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the
asset was measured at amortised cost is recognised in other comprehensive income as
the ‘accumulated impairment amount”

» The company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI)
financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

F. Derecognition of financial assels

a) A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derecognized only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and substantially all risks
and rewards of the ownership of the asset.

b) The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received /
receivable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

ii.  Financial liabilities
a) Initial recognition and measurement

* All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

« The company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings, other financial liabilities etc.

b) Subsequent measurement

*» The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

a. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
The company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL.

b. Financial liabilities at amortized cost
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A. Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities

« After initial recognition, Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses
are recognised in statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of
profit and loss.

B. Derecognition of financial liabilities

» A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability Is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less
cumulative amortisation.

Reclassification of financial assets

The company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. Such changes are
evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the company either
begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the company
reclassifies financial assets, It applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following
the change In business model. The company does not restate any previously recognised
gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable contractual legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
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and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.24 Non - current asset held for sale

a) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their

carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is
considered highly probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or
disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the
sale will be withdrawn, and sale is expected within one year from the date of the
classification. Disposal groups classified as held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment, Investment property
and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortized once classified as held for sale.
Assets classified as held for sale/distribution are presented separately in the balance sheet.

b) If the criteria stated by IND AS 105 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale” are no longer met, the

225

2.26

disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale. Non-current asset that ceases to be
classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of

I. its carrying amount before the asset was classified as held for sale, adjusted for

depreciation that would have been recognized had that asset not been classified as
held for sale, and

its recoverable amount at the date when the disposal group ceases to be classified as
held for sale

The depreciation reversal adjustment related property, plant and equipment, Investment
property and intangible assets is charged to statement of profit and loss in the period when
non-current assets held for sale criteria are no longer met.

Prior Period Adjustment

Errors/omissions discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are treated as
immaterial and adjusted during the current year, if all such errors and omissions in aggregate
does not exceed 0.50% of total operating revenue as per last audited financial statement of
the Company.

Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The estimates used in the preparation of the said financial statements are continuously
evaluated by the company and are based on historical experience and various other
assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events), that thecompany believes
to be reasonable under the existing circumstances.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or
that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the
reporting date. Although the company regularly assesses these estimates, actual results could
differ materially from these estimates - even if the assumptions underlying such estimates
were reasonable when made, if these results differ from historical experience or other
assumptions do not turn out to be substantially accurate. The changes in estimates are
recognized in the financial statements in the period in which they become known.
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iv.

« The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at

the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. Actual
results could differ from these estimates.

Allowances for uncollected trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the
receivables balances and historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off
when management deems not be collectible.

Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other
claims against the company. There are certain obligations which managements have
concluded based on all available facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or
difficult to quantify reliably and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and
disclosed in notes Although there can be no assurance of the final outcome of legal
proceedings in which the company is involved. it is not expected that such contingencies s will
have material effect on its financial position of probability.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation., based on the company's past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period.

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax
laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes
to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already
recorded. The company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount
of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and
differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax
authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending
on the conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

Impairment of non-financial assets
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» |Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding
sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a
DCF model.

vi. Non-current asset held for sale

¢ Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their
carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is
considered highly probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or
disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the
sale will be withdrawn, and sale is expected within one year from the date of the classification.

vii. Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

+ The company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses
its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment.

viii. Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options - company as
Lessee

« The company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together
with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably
certain not to be exercised.

* The company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The
company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to
exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors
that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or
change in circumstarices that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to
exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold
improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

ix. Revenue recognition

* The company's reventie recognition policy, which is set out in Note 2.10, is central to how the
company values the work it has carried out in each financial year.

* These policies require forecasts to be made of the outcomes of Contracts, which require

assessments and judgments to be made on changes in scope of work and claims and
variations.

« Estimates are also renuired with respect to the determination of stage of completion and
estimation of project completion date:




Determination of stage of completion
Estimation of project completion date
Provisions for foreseeable loses
Estimated total revenues and estimated total costs to completion, including claims and
variations.
e These are reviewed at each reporting date and adjust to reflect the current best estimates

* 8 & @

Revenue and costs in respect of contracts are recognized by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the end of reporting period, measured based on proportion
of contract costs incurred for work performed to the date relative to the estimated total contract
costs, where this would not be representative of stage of completion. Variations in contract work
and claims are included to the extent that amount can be measured reliably, and receipt is
considered probable. When it is probable that contract costs will exceed total contract revenue,
the expected loss is recognized as an expense immediately.
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Intangible Assets
(in Rs. Crore) (in Rs. Crore) (in Rs. Crore)

Intangible assets RiMAgkis Asnet Other Intangibles

e under development (ol Beal) (Software)
P (Refer Note 24)
Gross Block
Opening balance at 1 April 2018 682.53 -
Addition during the year 4425 726.78 =
Capitalisation during the year (726.78) - B
Disposals / adjustment during the year - -
Closing balance at 31 March 2019 - 726.78 -
Addition during the year - - -
Disposals / adjustment during the year = = >
Closing balance at 31st March 2020 - 726.78 -
Amortisation and Impairment
Closing balance at 31 March 2018 - =
Amortisation during the year - 34.37 =
Sales / adjustment during the year g . -
Closing balance at 31 March 2019 - 34.37 -
Amortisation during the year ~ 41.52 -
Sales / adjustment during the year = - -,
Closing balance at 31st March 2020 - 75.88 =
Net book value
At 31st March 2020 s 650.89 g
- 692.41 -

At 31 March 2019
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Heonsge

Non-Current Assets - Other Financial Assets
(in Rs. crore)

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
a) Considered Good : Unsecured
Security Deposits

- Government Departments 3 >
- Others 0.15 0.11

Total - Other Financial Assets 0.15 0.11

b) Considered Doubtful
Total - Other Financial Assets - Doubtful - =

Grand Total - Other Financial Assets 0.15 0.1
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o Deferred Tas Assets and Income Tax

Dhnclosure pursuant 1o Ind AS |2 "Income Taxes™ mw

() The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 Murch 2020 and 31 March 2019 are

n
S.No.| Particulars For (he Yesr ended
3 1020 st 019
| |Prefit and Loss Secilon
Current income tas |
Curvent income tax charpe 5
| Adiustrent i respect of current tax of previous year oa3
Deferved tax :
| |Relating to ori of ences 007 010 |
| |Income tax expense reporied in the Profit and Loss section 0.10 0.10 |
1 |Other Comprehensive Incomse (OCH) Section
Income tax reluted to items recognised ia OCI during the yeart
Net Joss/{gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans - -
Net an tranalation - -
L llncome tas expense reported in the OCI pection 3 >
(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the sccounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tas rate for 31 March 020 and 31 March 2019:
in_crore,
Particulsrs For the Year ended
3134 March 2020 M. W19
Accounting profit before income tax (30.73) (30.51)
| Corporate tax rate 23 per Income tax Act, 1961 29 168% 26.000%

Tax on Accounung profit (3} = (1) * (2) - =

Effect of Tax Adjustments; |
Adjustments in respect of curment income tax of previous years 003 o
(1) [Unlisstion of previously unrecogrused tax losses - -

(ni} |Impact of Rate Difference . .

{iv) | Tax on Income exempt from tax 3

(v) |MNon-deducnble expenses for ras pumoses.

o

0m

0.10 mH

(¢) Components of deferred tax (nssets) and labilities recog In the Balance Sheet und S of Prafis or Less
5.Ne.| Particulars Balunce sheet
J1s(March 2020 3ist March 2019 | 31st March 2020 31st March 2015 _
: dmmmm e d-'lﬂm hem (60.52) . (60.52) .
2 - g & i
1 omm 50,92 007 6085 0.10)
4 | haws disallowed u's 418 of Income Tax Act, 1961 - . : -
5 | Impact of expenditure charged to the of profit and loss in the

eurrent year and earhier years but sllowable for tax purpases on payment basis . . -

Fir val af fi i ¥ i i
7 | Unutilised gan/loss on FYTOC] equity securities and FVTPL Mutual funds i I 1
Net deferred tax assets/(labilitles) ~ 807 {067 (0.8)
“ U ferren Viex Ausets ariving en oo of Business losser has been restricled to the Deferred Tix Liabiiity artsing from PPE and fntangible Assels wy g mathor af comneriattem,
e fierred Tik asset of B |5 54 Crorey has mal bean d o o matier of pruds i limg with g policy 117
() Keflected In the balance sheet as fallows:
(R in ero
3
I |Deferred tax usseis 60.92 007
2 |Deferred vax lishility _{_m .
Uiabilities] (N 0.07 |
Naove: Daferred tax assets and deferred o finbilines have been offset as they relime w the same governing faws
e} R istion of deferred tan (linbilites )
Asat3l M 2020
S.No.| Particuturs B R Ised in R ised in OC1 Balance
‘.‘ MulﬁAwi sintement of profit As at 3ut March,
2009 (Net) _and loss 20N
| |Property, Plant & Equip {ineluds \mble) Difference in book - -
la el ri% (6002) (6092)
1 | Provisiony - 4 > i
b ] 0o7 bl NS - 60,97
4 | hems disallowed w's 438 of Income Tax Act, 1961 . - . -
5 | lmpect of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the
curtent year and earlior years but allowablo for tax purposes on payment basis
6 | Fair valuation of financial instruments : * .
7 | Unutilised guinfloss on FVTOC! equity securities and FYTPL Mutual funds -
Dot deferved iny assoc/{labilities) 007 (007) - B
As 8t 31 March 2019 (Rs, in crore)
5.No.| Particulurs Bal Recognised in Recognised kn OC1 Balance
Awat Ist April  statement of profit An at 31st March,
2018 (Net) and loss 2019 (Net)
I |Property, Plam & E: (inchad, wible): Difference n book C 3 %
-dmmmmdmmemupm
2 .00 . . &
i Olhn 017 (0.10) . 0.07
4 | hems disallowed w's 438 of Income Tax Act, 196] 0.00 0.00 - v
5 | lmpact of exp chuged (v the of profit and loss m the
curment year and earficr years but allowable for tax purposes on p basis. 0.00 . -
b Fair val of fi i 0.00 0,00 -
Unutihised gainloss on FVTOCT equity secunties and FVTPL Mutual funds .60 0.00 i
0 007
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Current Financial Assets - Trade Receivables

Weanmsge

(in Rs. crore)

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Considered Good : Unsecured

- Trade receivables 0.14 0.70
(Refer Note34C.)
Considered Doubtful

- Trade receivables = -
Less : Impairment allowances for doubtful debts -
Total 0.14 0.70

(9/ Y
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Comsge

7.2  Current Financial Assets - Cash and Cash equivalents

(in Rs. crore)
Particulars Foot Note 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Cash on hand 5 Z
Cheques/drafts in hand - -
Remittance in Transit - 2
Balances with banks:*
- On current accounts 0.02 0.01
- Flexi Accounts 330 6.10
~ Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months - 3.50
3.32 9.81
* The above balance pertain to ESCROW A/C which are year mark fund as per concession agreement entered with NHA[
Current Financial Assets - Other Bank Balances
(in Rs. crore)
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Other Bank Balances

~ Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months o
- Fixed Deposits received from Contractors ( shown under other financial assets) = -

. %/ 10 N

F - "'\\‘. F “

Y

&x : \ TL"/‘V/.?

el 4

N AN
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Current Financial Assets - Loans

ieamsp

(in Rs. crore)

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

A. Considered Good : Secured

Staff Loans and Advances

Total (A) - Secured Loans

B. Unsecured, considered good
(i) Loans to Related Parties:

(ii) Others:
Staff Loans & Advances

Total (B) - Considered Good : Unsecured (i) + (if)

Grand Total

Current Assets - Other Financial Assets

(in Rs. crore)

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Considered Good : Unsecured
Interest Accrued on |

- Deposits with Banks/Flexi Deposit
Other Recoverable A

0.01
0.41

0.03

Total - Other Financial Assets - Good

0.42

c¢) Considered Doubtful
Security Deposits
- Government Departments
- Others
Interest Accrued on Advances to Staff
Earnest Money Deposit
- Retention Money with client
- Money Withheld by Client
Others
Less : Impairment allowance for doubtful financial assets (others)

0.03

Total - Other Financial Assets - Doubtful

Grand Total - Other Financial Others

0.42

0.03

A= QOther recoverables includes Rs 0.41 Crores from NHAI on account of additional concesssion fees paid in March 2020 due to

COVID 189 Lockdown, which is recoverable Iin the subsequent months from NHAI

Debis due by officers of the company, firms in which any director is a partner or private company in which any director Is a member

except JVs and Subsidiaries are Rs. Nil (Rs. Nil).

Details of amount due from Directors:

(in Rs. crore)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2020

As at 31st March 2019

Amount due from directors included in interest accrued on staff loans
land advances

Total

QQ {9 y &)
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Current Assets - Current Tax Assets (Net) iﬁ”ﬂw

{in Rs. crore)
Particulars Foot Note 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Taxes Paid including TDS & Advance Tax (Net of Provision for Tax) 0.75 1.91
Current tax Assets (Net) 0.75 1.91
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iEmmsye:

Particulars Foot Note 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Other Current Assets
(in Rs. crore)

i .
a) Advances Other than Capital Advances
Advances to Contractors against material and machinery . =

Advances to Contractors, Suppliers and Others - -
Advance Recoverable from:

- Sales Tax (including TDS) - -

Less : Deposited under Protest = =

- Value Added Tax > 0.43

- Goods & Services Tax - -

- Service Tax input credit - &
Security Deposits

Interest Accrued on:
Deposits & Advances with:

- Contractors, Suppliers & Others E -
Assets held for disposal - -
Prepaid Expenses 0.34 -
Fair valuation adjustment - -
Lease Equalisation - -

Total - Others 0.34 0.43

¢) Considered Doubtful

Advances to Contractors, Suppliers and Others -
Sales Tax (Including TDS) -
Others .
Value Added Tax -

Less: Impairment allowance for doubtful advances - =

Total - Considered Doubtful . -

Grand Total 0.34 0.43
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10  Equity Share capital

ieomspe

(in Rs. crore)
Particulars As at 3istMarch  As at 31st
2020 March 2018
Authorised share capital
15,00,00,000 Equity shares ol Rs.10 sach 150.00 150.00
150.00 150.00
Issued/Subscribed and Pald up Capital
15,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10 each-fully pald 150.00 150.00
150.00 150.00
Detalls of shareholders holding in the company
As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019
Name of the sharehoider % hoiding in the % holding in
No. of Share Clae No, of Share the Glade
Ireon International Limited- Holding 15,00,00,000 100.00 15,00,00,000 100.00
Company { IRCON)
Total 15,00,00,000 100 15,00,00,000 100
Reconcillation of the number of equity shares and share capital outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Particulars As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2018
No of shares Rs in crore No of shares Rs In crore
Issued/Subscribed and Paid up equity Capital outstanding at the beginning of the
year 15,00,00,000 150.00 15,00,00,000 150.00
Add: Shares Issued during the year E ” i 3
Less: Shares Buy Back during the year = : - =
Issued/Subscribed and Paid up equity Capital outstanding at the end of the year
15,00,00,000 150.00 15,00,00,000 160,00
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Other Equity

icomsp

{in Rs. crore)

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2018

Retained Eamings

General Reserve

Capital Redemption Reserve
Other Comprehensive Income
Total

Movement as per below:

(a) Retained Earnings

Opening Balance

Add: Transfer from surplus in statement of profit and loss
Closing Balance

(b) General Reserve
Opening Balance

Closing Balance

{c) Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance

Add: Transfer for Buy Back of Equity Shares
Closing Balance

{d) Other comprehensive income

Opening Balance
Foreign Currency Translation (net of tax)

Closing Balance

Grand Total

Nature and Purpose of Other Reserves:
(a) Retained Earnings

(62.19)

(31.36)

(32.15)

3138)

(31.36)
(30.83)

(0.73)
(30.63)

(62.19)

(31.36)

(62.19)

(31.36)

Retained Earnings represents the undistributed profits of the Company.

(b) General Reserve

General Reserve represents the statutory reserves, this is in accordance with Corporate Law wherein a portion of
profit is apportioned to General Reserve. Under Companies Act, 2013, the transfer of any amount to General

Reserve is at the discretion of the Company.

(c) Items of Other Comprehensive Income

Other Comprehensive Income represents balance arising on account of exchange difference on translation of foreign

operations.
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12 Non-Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities r
121 Non-Current Financial Liabllities - Borrowings ’W”’;M

(in Rs. crore)
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
( ].L from Holding C I ti
a) Loan from Helding Company(Ircon International Limited) (Refer note
below and 13.1) 540.87 516.66
Total 540.87 516.66_

(a) Terms & Conditions
i) A Term Loan of Rs. 722.11 crore has been santioned from the its holding company Ircon International Limited for meeting the total project cost as per
the terms and condition of the agreement, out of which Rs 578.59 crore has been disbursed by Ircon International Limited up to 31st March 2020 and
Rs 15.44 Crores has been repaid during the year. Rs 540.87 Crores is classified above and balance under Current Financial Liability

i) Interest Terms

The Applicable Interest rate is base rate of SBI plus spread of 0.5%. With affect from 01.04 2020 the Interest rate has been modified SBI or PNB 1 year
Fixed deposii Rate whichever is lower + 1%.

iif) Terms of Repayment

Term Loan shall be repaid in 12.5 years starting from the expiry of 12 months from COD,

Iv) Terms of security for loan are as follows:
(i) & first prierity mortgage/ charge over all borrowers immovable properties. and hypothecation of movable properties (including but not limited to all
current/non cufrent assels) both present and future

(Ii) a first priority charge over all fees. Revenues and Receivables of the borrower form the project assets or otherwise,

(iif) & first priority charge over assignment of all project agreements. all guarantees, performance gurantees or bonds, letter of credit that may be
provided by any party o any project agreament in favour of the borrower and clearance and all nights titles, approvals, permits, clearances and interest
and the borrower right, fitle, interest, benefit and claim in, to or under the project agreemenl and clearance.

{lv) & first priority charge over assignment of all the borrowers right, title Interest, benafit and claim of the borrower In, to or under the insurance
contracts, insurance policies and the insurance proceeds

(v) a first priority/ charge/ assignment of all the intangible assets of the borrower including but not limited to goodwill. undertakings and uncalled capital
both present and future

(vi) a first priority charge over all bank accounts of the borrower Including without limitation, the escrow accounts (or any account in substitution thereaf)
and all funds from time to lime deposited therein and in all permitted invesiments or other securities representing all amounts credited to escrow
account, provided that the above (i) to (v) will exclude projects assets

122  Non-Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables
{in Rs. crore)

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises e ",
Other than Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises - -
Notes:

a) Disclosures as required under Companies Act, 2013 / Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 (MSMED) are provided in Note 36.
b) Terms and Conditions and other balances with related parties are disclosed in Note 29.
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1341

13.2

Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities

Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings

WEonmspe

(in Rs. crore)

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Loan From IRCON- Current 23.28 44.93
Total 23.28 44.93
Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables
(in Rs. crore)

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises . -
Other than Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises

(a) Contractor & Suppliers - 1.86

(b) Related Parties 1.08 18.97
Total 1.08 20.83
Notes:

a) Disclosures as required under Companies Act, 2013 / Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development

Act, 2008 (MSMED) are provided in Note 36.

b) Terms and Conditions and other balances with related parties are disclosed in Note 28.

7
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14 Current Liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities

(in Rs. crore)
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Gratuity Payable : =
Deposits, Retention money and Money Withheld 0.47 0.83
Financial Guarantee Contract L A
Amount Payable to Client = 1.51
Interest Payable on Advance from Client - -
Other Payables (including Staff Payable) 1.88 0.10
Lease Liability 5 -
Total 2.35 2.44

15 Other Current Liabilities

(in Rs. crore)
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Statutory dues 0.67 1.83
Total 0.67 1.83

Notes:
a) Statutory dues includes liability for Goods and Service Tax (GST), TDS, Provident
Fund and other statutory dues.

o B
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16 Revenue from operations

lEmns,  ......

For the year ended 31st March For the year ended 31st March

2020 2019
Construction Contract revenue - 32.50
Revenue from Toll Operations (Refer Note 5
24 & 34) 94.17 72.88
- Other Operating Revenue 0.27 4437
Total 94.44 149.75

17  Other Income

For the year ended 31st March For the year ended 31st March

2020 2019

Interest Income :

Interest on refund of income-tax 0.14 -

Interest on other advances/Security . ¢

Deposits

Bank Interest Gross 0.29 0.30

Less:- Interest passed to clients - 0.29 - 0.30
Others :

Miscellaneous Income 0.01 013

Less:- Exchange Fluctuation Loss - - - -

Less:-Dividend passed to clients - - - *
Total 0.44 0.43
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18 Employee Remuneration and Benefits

Fal

Heomsge

[in Rs. crom)
For the year ended 21st March 2020 For the year ended 31st March 2019
2 m Othe Other
r
Total
Operating | | saministrative) Tordd Operaing | (s yministrative)
Salanes, wages and bonus 1.23 012 1356 077 020 087
Contribution o provident and other funds 0.18 s a.18 on * on
Foreign service contribution = ~ . & - =
Retirement Banefits 0.08 - 0.08 0.08 - 0.08
Total 1.48 012 1.60 0.96 0.20 1.18
Finance Cost
(In Rs, crore)
Particulars :::: For the year ended 31st March 2020 | For the year ended 31st March 2019
Inlerest Expense - 52.81 - 43.48
Other Borrowing Cost
- Bank Guarantee & Other Charges 0.03 a.0%
Interest Cost on Lease Liability . 2
Total §2.84 43.49
Depreciation, amortization and impairment
Rs. crore)
For the year ended 31st
Particulars March 2020 For the year anded J1st March 2019
Property, Plant and equipment 0.02 0.02
Intangible Assets 41.53 34,38
Investment Property = r
Impairment of Assets " £
Total 41.55 34.40 |
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treon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited
Notes 10 Financial Statements for ihe year andsd March 31, 2020

Note:-22
A, Fair Value Measuremants mw

{l) Category wise classification of Financial Instrumants

Financial assets and financial liatilities are measured at lair value In these financial stalement and are grouped into three levels of o teir value hierarchy. The threa Levels are defined based on the
observabiiity of sgnificant inputs 10 the measuremen, as foliows:

Level 1: Quotsd prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 0enlical assets or ladiles

Level 2 Inputs ather ihan quoted prces included within Level | il s obssrvaite for the sssel or Habany, sithes dvectly of intiectly

Level 3 Uncbsarvable inputs for the assel or liability

a)The carrying vaiues and fai values of financial instruments by categones as at 315t March 2020 are s foliows: *

Financial Assets at Falr Value Through Profit and Loss ('FVTPL)

014
%

047

b) The camying values and fair values of financial inst tn by as at 315t March 2010 are as follows: *

- Paricuars = e ks

[Financial Assets #f Fair Value Through Profit and Loss |FUTPL)
Mutusi

000 : :
ual - 3 3
018 . .

8180 -
2083 - =

oY : : =1

The fakr values of the financial assets and fnancial Im:ilmn an defined as the price thal woulkd be received on sale of an assel of pakd |o irenaler s lisbility in an orderty Iransaction between markol
date, and ¥ used lo he falr values are cansistent with those used for the fnanclal year 2018-10. The and were
used lo estimats ihe (alr values

1) The tmir valus of Investmants in mutual fund units is based on the Nel Asset Value ('NAV) as sated by the issuers of Ihese mutusl fund unils in the published stainments as ot Balance Sheet date.
NAV represants tha price st which tha issuer will lssus further units of mutual fund and 1he pnce o which issuers will redeem such unils from the invesiors.

) The camying amouni of fi assets and fi = co#l in (hese oh imation of ihaw Il values since ihe Company doss
not anticipate (hal e carrying would be signifi 1t MNMMMMMMMNM

i) The camylng amaounts of current financial assets and current financial llabliites agproximate thair far value mainly due to thels shor term nature.
* During tha financial yaar 2019-30 and 2018-16, thure wire no irnsfers between Level 1, Lavel 2 and Leval 3 fair value measuremants

== Other linancial assets and other financial Nablllies includes cerain flems which are recognized 8l Iransaction price, s the sffect of measuring these st fair value is immaiorial,

B. Financial Risk Manageman
The 'S [ g%. irade and ather payaties. The ipal fi i assets include loans 10 related parties, irade and olher recaivables, and
cash and shor-lenm deposts that denve directly from ns The Company sisc holds nmmmmmm The Company's aciivilies expose & 10 some of the

financial risks. marked sk, credil sk and hquidity nisk.

) Market Risk
Markot risk (5 iha risk that the fair value of futire cash fows of & fi | nits will i U of in market prices. Markol risk comprises Foreign currency risk and Intefest e
risk. Financial [nstruments affected by markel risk inclutes borrowings, trade recelvabies, irade payable snd other non denvative financial instruments.

{1} Foreign Curmency Risk
The company does not operate y and Foreign g risk is nil or insignificant

(i) Interest Rats Rish
Intarest rete risk (s the nsk ihat the Bsir valus of Tulure cash Nows of & fi will Muctusin of change in marke! inleres! rate. The company manages s inferest risk in
sccordance with Ihe companias policies and nsk objective. Financial instruments affacted by interast rale sk inciudes deposits with banks, interest rate risk on those fnancial instruments Sre very iow
as interest rate for tha period of financial instruments. Also. ihe Company does nol have &Ny INerest nsk on loans / Bormrowings 3 it b fixed rate of inlavest.
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) Credit Risk

Crodit risk Is the risk of f) | lons to the Company If & ty to & financlal insh fails 1o meet its cont and anses ipally from the C: L J
fram eustomars and (nvastman, cmm-mmmmmumwﬂmiumw % wall 08 credil mxposure 1o cliands, including oulstanding accounts racalvable, The maximum
xposure to credil risk Is qual 1o Ihe carrying value of ihe financial assets, The objective of managing counterparty credil risk I 10 prevent losses In financial assets. currently company has dealt with NHAI
(National Highway Authorily of India) only therefore company have minimal crodi risk.

Trade and other recelvable
The Compeny’s exp 10 crodn risk ks mainly by the of eacn . The of the A the defaull dsk of the industry snd country in
‘which the also has an inf on credil fish assessment.
Tha foliowing tatie gives detai in respect of revanues ganeratad rom lop thres Q0 of under SCA and Toll receipts
fin Rz crore}

Particulars For the andad
Revenus trom tha Top thas mvenue streams 0444 | %"

84,44 1

Expoaure to Credit Riak

31Mar-20 %

Particulars
Financial Assets for which aliowsnce is measured using Litetime Expected Credit Losses (LECL)

Non Current Investiments -
Non Current Loans. . -
Other Non Cumend Financial Assets 018 o1
Current Invesiments . .
Cash and Cash Equivalenis 352 a1
Other Bank Balances - .
Curmeni Loans 0.00 -
Other Current Financial Asssts 042 003

Financial Assets for which allowance s measured using Simplified Approach

Trade Receivables o

During the year. e Ci s loss of R NIL (31 March, 2019 ; Rs. NIl ),
of change in loss using Lifetime E mmmw

|
i

i

ques or pilons were mads during ine reporting period. During fhe year, fhe C han loss of As NiL

€} Liquidity riak

mmmmunmmmmmmummmwmmmmmmmmmu The treasury
depariment regulary monnons the position of Cash ang Cash Eqg Wis-&-vis proy of maturity profiles of ana of Balance Showl
liquidity ratios are consadersd while reviewing the lguidity position

The Comgany’s invesimeni policy and sirategy are focumed on pressrvaiion of capitsi and supporting the Company's liquidity requirements. The senior Managemant of the Company ns
mnmummmmwmmwummmmmmmmmm 9 ity to be grade, with
he primary obj sk of

The teble below provides detalis regarding the significant financial lisbiitles as at 31st March 2020 and 31 s March 2018
{in Re, crore)

—_— AR -
Less than { Year 1-2 years 1 Yeurs and above
5% b

Particulars

Concentrations arse when & number of les are enguged in similar l or I the same geographical reglon, of have economic features INal would cause thelr abdity 1o
moet 1o be y effected by ges (n palltical or ofher condilions. Concentrations indicate the relative y of tne Company's p o

In ordes 10 svoud of rish. the '3 polses 20d include weafic guid o f the of 3 diversified portfolio ldentifiad concantrations of credil

C. Capital Management

TMuh]lcllnufll\lComplnyhlnll\.lnqlll::lplllInlmlllwlnlnmmdufogulﬂlnlklhllwwmulwmmlﬁlﬂi mmmmwmmm retums to share
holders and benefil 1o olher Further, Itu capital o make the light of gen bn and ol Ihe

Gompany has Whan & 16m loan dudng (he FY 2018-20 of Rs 18,00,00,000 00 { Gumuliiive Uil FY 2019-20 fs 564,15.00.000) om 18 koiding company to finance |ty project

:'.1.‘\.. el
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Note:-

Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

23 Details of Related Party Transactions during the year

{Amt in Crore)
Name of| Transactions (Rs.) Qutstanding Amount
Related Particular
During the Period During the Period
Party upto 31-03-2020 upto 31-03-2019 As at 31st March 2020| As at 31st March 2019
Investment in Equity - - 150.00 150.00
Loans 2.56 (9.186) 564.15 561.59
Other Pa (17.89) (5.97 1.08 18.97
iréon |Rendering of services
{siation Works Contract * Excl GST as expense = 1659
| Limited Works Contract * Exci GST capitalised - 27.53
Rent Excluding GST as 0.02 0.01
Rent Excluding GST capitalised 0.01
Interest on Loan as an expense 52.81 43.46
Interest on loan capitalised 914

118



Ircon Shivpurl Guna Tollway Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note:-24 Service Concession Arrangements (SCA)
Public-to-private service concession arrangemenis are recorded in accordance with Appendix “C'- Service Concession Arrangements to Ind AS-115-
"Revenue from Contract with customers”. This SCA Is falling within this appendix's scope as bolh the conditions set out below are met;

@)  The Grantor controls or regulates which services the operator mus! provide with the infrastructure, 1o whom it must provide them, and at what price;
and

b)  The grantor controls- through ownership, beneficial entitlement, or otherwise- any significant residual Iinterest In the Infrastructure at the end of the
term of the arrangement,

An intangible assel Is recognized to the exient that the operator recelves the right lo charge users of the public service, provided that these charges are
conditional on the degree to which the service Is used.

These intangible assets are initially recognized at cost, which Is undersiood as the fair value of the service provided plus other direct cosls directly
attributable lo the operation. They are then amortized over the term of the concession,

Ircon Shivpurl Guna Toliway Limited (IrconSGTL) (the operator) has entered inlo a service concession arrangement with National Highway Authority of
India (NHAI) dated 15th June 2015 In terms of which NHAI (lhe grantor) has authorized the company fo develop, finance, design, engineer, procure,
construcl, operate and malntain the Project of four laning of Shivpuri Guna Seclion and to exercise and/or enjoy the rights, powers, benefits, privileges
authorizations and entitlements upon Its completion. In terms of the sald agreement Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited has an obligation to complete
construction of the project of four laning of Shivpuri Guna saction and 1o keep the project assels in proper working condition including all projects assets
whose lives have expired.

The Concession period shall be 20 years commencing from the appointment date. At the end of the concession period, the assets will be transferred back
lo National Highway Authority of India (NHAI). In case of material breach in lerms of agreement the NHAI and IrconSGTL have right to terminate the
agreemenl if they are nol able o cure the event of defaull in accordance with such agreement,

The Company recognizes revenue and cost in accordance with Ind AS 115 by reference to the construction's stage of completion. The Company measures
contract revenue at the fair value of the consideralion receivable. During lhe arrangement’s conslruction phase, the Company's assets of 726.78 crores
(representing its accumulating right to be paid for providing construction services) is classified as an intangible assets (license lo charge user of the
infrstructure), which was completed In 2018-19, The Company has recognized nil profit on construction of intangible assels under service concession
arrangement The revenue recognized in relation to construction of intangible assels under service concession arrangement represents the fair value of
services provided towards construction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement. The operation of toll road has commenced from 7th
June 2018 and the company has recognised usage fee as revenue of Rs. 84,17 Crores from operation of toll roads for the year ended 31.03.2020

Concession fee and its premium Is seen as belng paid for eamning the revenue and Is treated as a charge against revenue. During the year concession
fees of Rs 20.79 Crores ( Rs 16.83 crores) lo NHAI has been paid as per lerms of the concession agreement . Usage fee collected over and above the
Iraffic cap as per the concession agreement is termed as excess fee, This SCA Is due (o be renegotialed as per clause number 28 and 29 of the
concessionaire agreement.

Construction Contracts
In terms of the disclosure required In Ind AS -115 "Revenue from Conlract with Customers” , the amount considered In the financial statements up to the
balance sheet date are as follows:-

Amount in Rs Crores
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-18
Revenue recognized from construction services - 32.50
Revenue recognised from toll-Usage fee 8417 72 88
Aggregate amount of cost incurred and recognized in Profit/Loss - 32.50

Gross amount due from Client for Contract Works . )

%
Q% \'PQ %)
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trean Shivpan Guna Todwey Limised
Notes 1 Financial Ststenmnts for ihe ywar snded March 11, 2020

Notai- 26 Disclosure as required by Ind AS 1 P of Financial 8 -
i Shonifs .

Policy on'Lesses’ hus bosn modified in the significant acomunting policies dus o v spplicabiltty of ing AS 116 “Lesses™
-uumﬂmm”mmtmnmmunn.multamuummum
Mmaasinamand. oresartation nd dsciouse Of ksses and |eguies lesszes fo (roogrme most keases on the balance sheet

Lessor accounting undes Ind AS 116 la substantially snchanged from Ind AS 17, Lessors wil continue to classify leases as sther operatng
ﬂWhm“ermhuthMﬂ Thevelore, Ind AS 116 did not have an impact for leases where the Compny s
the |essor

mwmumuumnmmmdwmuwﬁmwami 2018,
Mnmhﬂnﬁs“ﬂmﬂﬂm“d”mmmmuum

of ot ot b m - or
v mm.mmml— wppied he durds only 1o ial weie prav ﬂummn
AS Y

Thas afuct of adoption Ind AS 116 a at Apfll 01 2018 (inciesss/{decraase)) i s follows:
. in

=

The Company has lewss contracm for Rented’ office premises onty, These ieanen are siier Delow 12 MOMNS o of low value, Blatore e
mﬁu»nl.nu«mwwuum:-mmmhqummﬂm-mmﬂmm
Inmss Lipon sdoption of ind AS 116, e Company apphed for all kases sxcen! for short-
mu—-ﬂhmmmumztsuumm mmmmmmm
pracical mpedents whch have been apphed by the Company.
Leases previously clessified as finance leases
mhwwﬂmmwmm
lud for as oparaling laases

mmmmmwmmwmmmm-mmmum
tarm leases and opesrtng lesses classrhed 51 low value  The lessee iscognites & leane babadty measured 81 Me pressnt vake of e

' ase umng the lessee’s noremantal borrowing rate of the dete of mslsl appicaton end comespandingy
mﬁhm*dnmaﬂuhhﬂﬂm previously recognized prepaid of accrued kease
paymants.

The Company alse spplied the avallable practieal axpadiants wharain it
(i) Used a single: discousti rate to a partiobo of leases with ressonably simiar charactoristics

(¥) Agphed the short-term lases examplions 1o leases weh lsase term tel ends withan 12 mont of (e date of intlel application and the
total lnane term = wean (han |2 monfe and s Tose leases el are esseniial leimed s Tow vake'

(W) Excluded the inftial direct costs from the messurement of Me right-of-use ssset 41 e date of sl spplication
{Iv) Unied hindsight In detarmineng the ieana larm whvere Ihe contrect containgd options to exiend o terminate the leese,
The lwase linbilties we a1 Agril 1, 2018 can be 1o the s of Muroh 31 2019 is ww fokows

(Rs. in
L 01, 3019

Laans payments relating o renewal periods not mciuded in opereiing lesse a
|commitments 2= al March 31. 2019
s 01, 3019 0.00

Nobe:- 26 Disclosure as required by Ind AS 8 "A g Policies, Ch inA el Efrors™

) Mnmywhc«n\pmmmdmmgpﬂmnlu-dnwrmumw It hvaw baan dacided 1o adjust ihe
bmymatadial prior pariod Reme in the curment year.
Tre inancial stalements e fiams for e yees snded 31 March 2020 which wers affected by the change n sccouning policy are given
e
Balenne Sheat ax 1 ¥l March, 2018

. in grore
8 No. |Particulars As per revised policy|As per pravious Impact
policy
Trade Payatie - Current 08 109} 1M
31Ok Fingely) (s, - Cuprend - L] - .
| 3 & Cash 581 81 .
= T n .91
i I 01 -
8 |Trade ; 10
= 150.00 150.00

Staternent of Profit and Loss for Bhe yess snded 11st March, 7018

As pur revieed policy| As per pravious Impact

4878
043
101
1.18
7708
308

j:%'-

b Comtam i wclmmailicutions Heve st s (o e sormmpersbs e s st to enkance it Ma /-.
Fnancal st ris, Thase raclassificaions have na affect on the reported results of operations.

{g) Fiavious yesr figares e shown under brasket () te differantiste kam cuersal yass Agune . 'L.
— )




Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited

Notes to Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note:- 27 Employee Benefits

The employees working for Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited (ISGTL) "the company" are posted on deputation /
secondment and are on the rolls of Ircon International Limited, the Holding Company. Their PF contributions, pension
contributions, gratuity, leave encashment and other retirement benefits have been accounted for on the basis of invoices /
debit advises from its holding company. The provision for gratuity and other retirement benefits of employees on deputation
in terms of Ind AS-19 is being made by its Holding Company as per its accounting policies.

Provident fund contribution and pension contribution of the employees on deputation has been regularly deposited by the
holding company with its P. F, Trust.

Note:- 28 (a)

(b)

(c)

Foreign exchange recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

(Rs. in crore)
Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st March [ended 31st March
2020 2018
Profit or Loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total - -
Earnings In foreign currency (on accrual baslis):
(Rs. in crore
Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st March |ended 31st March
2020 2019
Work Receipts & Locomotive lease - -
Bank Interest - -
Other Interest - -
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Gain (Net) = =
Others - -
Total - =
Expenditure In foreign currency (on accrual basis):
(Rs. in crore)
Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st March |ended 31st March
2020 2019
Operational Expenses

Consultancy charges

Foreign Exchange Flucluation Loss (Net)

Total
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Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note:- 20 Related Party Transactions

Disclosures in compliance with Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures™ are as under:

a) List of Related Parties

() Holding Company
Ircon Intemational Limited

() Board of Directors
Name Designation®
| Shel Deepak Sabhiok Chairman (upto 31st October 2018)
| 5hrl Shyam Lal Gupta Chaimman (w.e.f. 15t November 2018)
Shii Ashok Kumar Goyal Director

Director (From D6th march 2017 lo 18th Seplember 2018 and
OV R e reappointed w.e.{ 27th January 2020)
Shri d Br Di 4th 201
IMs, Anupam Ban Director 30th August 201
Ms. Bhuvanesahwar Krishnan Director (From 19th 1 sl Novamber 201
[Shrl Surafit Dutta Director (w.e.f. 1stN ]
w.ef. 16th Se| )
Parsonnel ( KMP)
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Ircon Shivpurl Guna Tollway Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year snded March 11, 2020

Transactions with Parsonnel (KMP) of the are as follows: [Rs. in crore)
S.No, |Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
318t March 2020 318t March 2018
1 |Shori lerm employoe bonefils 053 0.53
2  |Post employment banefits 0.09 0,06
. e oo om
4 |Termination benefits
5 [Sitting feas
Total 0.63 0.60
Transactions with related pariies are as foliows: (Rs. In crore)
For the year ended | For the year ended
e b WA 01 f¥iatid party WahirS: of reitionarin 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2018
1 |Sale of goods and sarvices
.1 |Contract Revenue Ireon Intemational Limited Helding Company - .
Icon Intemational Limiled Holding Company - .
Ircon Intemational Limited Work | Holaing Company - 44.12
3 |Reimbursement of Deputation Stafl Expenses, |Ircon Intemational Limited Holding Company
Rent & Other Misc. Expenses (income)
0.0z 0.02
4 ]nlrut Expense
4.1 Lp Loan Ireen Limited Holding Company 5281 52 60
§ |Repayment of Loans Ircon Intemational Limited Holding Company 1544 -
6 __|Advances/ Loans R Ireen Intemational Limited Holding Company 18.00 BIT
7 |Any Other tion not above Ircon Intemational Limited folding Company -
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Ireon Shivpurd Guna Tollway Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

d)

are as follows: (Rs. in crore)
| Asmt As ot
N GE NIpC. pary Nelies of reiationanly 3stMarch, 2020 | 31t March, 2018
1 |sgg! Recelvad ( Liabllity) [ireen International Limiled Holding Company 150.00 150,00 |
§_|B ing ircon Intarnational Limited Holdi 564,15 561.58
8 |Amount Payabie towards
8.1 |Trade Payables Ircon Intarmational Limied Holding Company 0.87 1853
6.8 |Other Payables lrcon Intemationa! Limited Holding Company [51] 0.44
Torms and conditions of tr wiith relaled parts

[0} Tmmmmnm«?mwummmnmmmm

(i} putstanding balances of related parties at the year-snd sxcept borowings are Unsecured and settiement occurs through banking iransactions. These balances other than loans and interest

advances are interest free.

bearing
(W)  The loans to key management personnel if any are on the same terms and conditions as applicabla to all other employees.
{iv)  The Company has not recorded any impairment of recelvables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessmant |s undartaken each financial year through examining the financial

position of the related party and the market in which the related pariy operales

{v) IrconSGTL had five Part-time Directors dunng the financial year 2018-20. nominated on tha Board by the holding company, do not draw any remunaratian from the Company. No sitling fes is
Directors

paid to the Part-time
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ircon Shivpurl Guna Tollway Limited
Notes to Financial Statamants for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note:- 30 Eamings Per Share
Diaclosurw #% per Ind AS 33 Earmings per share’

Basic EPS iy calculated by dwiding the profit for the year atiributable to equily holders by the waighted average number of squily shares oulslanding duning the year

Diluled EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for ihe year atinbutable to the equity hoiders after considering the effact of dilution by weighlad average number of squity shares outstanding during the yam
plus the weighted average number of equity shares thal would be issued cn conversion of sl the dilutive potential equity shares into squity shares

(1] Basic and dilutwd sarnings per share (in Rs.)

Particulars Note For the year |For the year
anded 3181 |ended 315t
March, 2020 | March, 2019

()] (30 83) (30 83)

i) 15.00 15.00 |

( (2,04}

(24 (2.04)

10,00 10.00 |

i) Profit aitributable to squl
Partioulars

sharshojders (used ss numerst;

. In crare

For the year | For the year
anded 318t | ended 11st

1
Boss]——posa]

For the year| For the year
ended 318t | ended 11t
March, 2020) March, 2019

=

—

Note:- 31 Impalrmant of Assets

In compliance of Ind AS 36 “Impairment of Assels”, the Company has reviewed Ihe assets al year-end for indicalion of impairment loss. If any, as per Ihe accounting policy of the Company
As IMere 18 NO INdication of iImpairment, NG iMpairment loss Nas been recogrised dunng the year.

Note:- 32 Provisions, Contingencies and Commitmants

(1) Provisions

An por Ind AS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabililles snd Conlingeni Assats’ there were no provigians fof (he year by Ihe Company

() Contingent Liabilities

Disclosure of Contingeni Liabililies as per Ind AS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assels' (s as under

(Rs. in crore)
[Particulars Foot| Asat3ist | Addition Claima sattied during the year As at 318t
Nabe | March 2018 | during the March 2020
your Out of the Out of Total Claima
apening addition Bettled
balance during tha [during the
yoaar yaar
8) |Claims sgainst the Company not acknowledged as debts : - -
b) |Guarantess [exc financial gusratess) issued by the co, on behalf of - -
|__c) |Other money for which company is contingent liable - J 2
(W) Commitments
(A=, in srove|
[Particulars FootNote | As atd1etMarch 020 |  As 3t J1ai March 2018 |
L) Commitmants
Esfirmwted smourd of contrects ismseing o e on captal sccount (ned of and nol p for- i 11212 1212
b] |Other © ==
(i) _|Concessanare ives 10 NHAI il end of Concessionaire of the Toll Road { refer Note 24 SCA) mﬂll 547 B0
s38.72| 559.02)
Faot Nota:
in crore
v [8Ne Commitments - As st 318t March 2020 | As at 31st March 2019
Eslimated amount of contracis remaining to be executed on Plant and
F al coni to be on Investmant
3 |Es amount of contracts 16 ba axscutad on | Assets under dave 12,12 112.12
Total 11212 11292

Cra

.

if ActB
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Ireon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note:- 33 Segment Reporting

Disclosure as per Ind AS 108 " Operating Segment” is given as under:

A. General information

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information Is available which Is being evaluated regularly by the Chiet
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) In deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. The Board of Directors of the Company is the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM). The operating segments have been reported In a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM) for review of performance and allocating resources.

The Company has determined reportable operating segments from geographical perspective.
B. Information about reportable segmaents and reconciliation to amounts reflected in the financial statemonts:

___{Rs. in crore]
Particulars Interr 1 Domestic Total
For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended
318t March 2020 31st March 2019 318t March 2020 31st March 2019 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Segement Revenue
Revenue from external customers 04,44 149,75 94.44 149.76
Add : Company's share of lurnover - -
In integrated joint operations
Tolal Operating Revenue - - 94.44 149.76 94.44 149.75
Iinterest income 0.43 0.30 0.43 0.30
Other Income 0.01 0.13 0.01 0.13
Inter - sagment 4 J
Total Revenue - - 94.88 1560.18 94.88 160.18
| Segement Result
Profit before provision, - - B63.66 47.36 63.66 47.36
depreciation, interest and
exceptional item and tax
Less: Provisons and write back = =
Less: Depreciation, amortization (41.55) (34.40) (41.586) (34.40)
Less: Interest (52.84) (43 49) (52.84) (43.49)
Profit before tax {30.73) 30.53 (30.73) (30.53)
Less: Tax expense (0.10 (0.10) (0.10) .10
Profit after tax - . (30.83) (30.83) (30.83) (30.63)
C.Other Information
(Rs. In crore)
Particulars International Domestic Total
For the year onded | For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended
318t March 2020 31st March 2019 318t March 2020 318t March 2019 31st March 2020 318t March 2019
Total Assats 656.06 705.34 656.06 705,34
| Total Liabilities 568.25 586.70 568.25 586.70
Investment in joint ventures
mccounted for by equity method ..
Non current asset other than
financial instruments, deferred tax
assets, net defined benefil assets 0.15 0.11 0.15 0.11
Capital Expenditure for the year
ending (Addition to PPE, CWIP,
Investment Property, Other
Intangible Assets, Intangible
assets Under development and
|Right-to-use) 0.01 6592.48 0.01 602 48 |

D. Information about major customer

The Company is engaged in the business of construction , op

, mainte

of Toll Road and its major revenue |s from the collection of the Toll Proceeds from the

vehicles that use the said Toll Road. Approximately 98% ( 48%) of the revenue has ansen from these during the period ended March 31, 2020, in the Domestic Segment

anly
Wil
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Vreon Shivpuri Guns Tollwey Limited
Notes to Finaacisl Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note:- 34 R from contract with

A. Disaggregation of Revenue

Set out below 15 the disagnregation of the Company's revenue from with inta segment and type of product or sirvices:
(Ry. in crore)
Type of Product or Services For the year ended March 31, 2020
Revenue ay per Ind AS 115 Method for measuring performance | (Other Revenue Totsl as per
obligation Statement of
Profit and Loss
Dosmestic Foreign Total Input Method || Output Method ek
Reparting
Pailways N -
Highway 94 44 94.44 94.44] 94.44
Eleetnical o |
Othery ! =
Total 94.44 - 9444 94,44 = - Sddd
Out of the total revenue recognised under Ind AS 115 during the year, s NIL is recognised over s period of time and Ry, 94.44 crore recopnised point in lime.
{R; In cibre)
Type of Product or Services For the year ended March 31, 2019
Revenue s per lnd AS 115 Method for mensuring performance Other Revense Total us per
obligation Stntement of
ofit and L
Dosmestic Foreign Totl Tnput Method | Output Method B yhoonegz
Reporting |
149,75 149.75| 144.75) 149.75
149.75 - 149.78 149.75 - - 149,75
Out of the toial revenue recognised under Ind AS 115 during the year, Rs 76.87 crore i recognised over a period of time and Ru. 7288 crore recognised point in time.
B. The Company has applied modified peetive approach for the spplication of Ind AS 115 "R from with * and the effect s Nil on retained eamings as at April |, 2018

C. Contract balances

(Rs. in crore)
Particul A As it
Aigt Murgh, 2020 | Jixi March, 2015 |
Trade Receivables (Note 7.1) .14 0.70
Contract Asscts - -
Contract Liabifities - >

(1) (1) Teade recervables arg non-mtercst bearing and the customer profile mcludes Natonal Highway Authonity of India ( NHAT) and Toll Colbection Ageney, The Company's average project execution
cyele is around 24 1o 36 months Genernl payment terms Include payments for utility shifting reimbursements and change in scope of work mutually agreed upon if any, with a credit period ranging from
) 1o | 8() days or when the work is cortified Payments also meludes Toll receipts for use of Toll collected by the Toll Collection Agency for the Campany, Project exccuted by the Company is under
BOT { built operaie ransfer) model and the payments are on account of Toll Collection and additonal works by NHAL if any

(i) (‘mﬂrut.\muammognlsadmu:pemd|nwhd|mmmwrﬁnnﬁwmmlmtmﬁﬂsh{bmmmndung:ﬁrguudinrsnrﬂmmmfmudwlbuusm It

includes bal due from under contracts that arise when the Company receives payments from customers as per terms of the cantracts however the revenuc is recogmnised over
the peniod under input method. Any amount previously recognised as & contract asset is reclassified to rade recevables on satisfaction of the conditon attached Le. future serviee which 18 necessary in
achjeve the billing milcstone,
Movement in contract balances during the year

Ra. in crore,
Fartitineg Ax at Axat

31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019

Contract asset at the Beginning of the year = =

Contract aseet at the end of the year - -
Net incresse/decrease = =

{m Contract liabilities relating to are bal due to these anse when a paricular milestone payment exceeds the revenue recognised 1o date undcr the input mithod and
) advance recerved m long term “The amount of Ad received gets ndjusted over the construction perind as and when mvoicing 18 made to the customer
[Hs. in crore)
Particulars Asmt Axmt
3ist March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Contract linbulities at the begrinning of the vear - -
Contract hnbilitics at the end of tho year = -
Net increase/decrease - S
D. Set out below is the smount of revenve recognised froo:
{Hs. in crore)
Particulars Axal As it

31st March, 2020 | 3sr March, 2019

Amount inchuded n contract habilities at the beginming of the vear - -

Performance obligation satsfied in previous vears - -

E. Performunce obligation
Information about the Company s perfi ligs an d below:

The transacton prce all 1 the ing perfi bligations (unsatisfied or partally unsansfiod) as at 3| March are, as follows:

{Rs. in crore)
Asat As nl
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2009
Withm one year 3 z
Mare than one year to 2 years - - /
More than 2 years - £
Total - -




Ircon Shivpurl Guna Tollway Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note:- 35 Leases
1) Company as a Lessee
The Company as a lessee has entered into two lease contracts, for offica space and guest house. Before the adoption of Ind AS 118,
the Company classified each of Its leases (as lessee) a1 the Inceplion dats as either a finance lease or an operating lease.
These leases ara in nature of short term leases or low value leases and are operaling leases

Right of Use Assets
The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year is Nil.
Lease Liabillties
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities recognised and the movements during the year
(Rs. in crore)
As at 31st March, 2020
Balance at April 1, 2019 0.00
Addition -
Accredition of interest ~
Payments =
Balance at March 31, 2020 0.00
Current -
Non-current -

Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

(Rs. In crore)
For the year
ended J1st
March 2020
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets -
Interest expense on lease liabilities -
Expense relating to shori-term and low value leases (Refer Note 18) 0.04
0.04

b) Company as a Lessor

The Company has given a demarcated area adjacent to the Toll Road, within the terms of the Service Concession Arrangement with
NHAI, on Lease for a Petrol Pump to be operated by Hindustan Petroleum Company Limited ( HPCL ) and Lease and operations of
Rest Area to Synergy Engineers Group Private Limited. An amount of Rs 0.16 Crores ( Rs 0.10 Crores) was received from HPCL and
Rs 0.12 Crores (Rs NIL) from Synergy as Lease payments.

(Rs. in crore)

As at
March 31, 2020
Within one year 033
After one year but not more than five years 1.38
More than five years 283
4.54
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Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tellway Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note:- 36  Information in respect of dues to Micro and Small Entarprises as required by Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008 (MSMED
Act)
(Rs. in crore)
S.No.|Particulars As at 31st As at 31st March,

March, 2020 2019

1 | The principal smount and the interest due Ihereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
asccounting year:

Principal amount due \a micro and small enterprises

Interest due on above g z =
2 |!‘henmunlnflnumtpudnymmrlnlamofsawun1ummuamenwmumgmmmmu¢
the payment made (o the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

3 | The amount of inlarest dua and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
|beyand the appointad day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2008

4 | The amount of inlerest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

5 [The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, unlil such dale when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006
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Ircon International Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statsments for the year ended March 31, 2020 W’ﬂm

Note:- 37 Corporate Soclal Responsibllity Expenses (CSR)
Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited ( IrconSGTL) s not either having net worth of Rs.500crore of more; or Tumover of Rs.1000crore or more; nor having net
profit of Rs.5crore or more during the preceding financial year as stated under section 135(1) of the Companies Act 2013. Therefore, the provisons of section 135
of the Companies Act, 2013, pertaining to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) are not applicable to IrconSGTL and the Company is nol required to spent any
amount on CSR Activities

Note ;- 38 Other disclosures

a) The duration and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic remains unclear at present as on reporting date. Hence, it is not possible to refiably estimate the
duration and severity of these consequences, as well as their impact on the financial position and resuits of the Company for future periods. However, the
company is protected by the clauses 29.6 of the Concession Agreement to claim such loss under force majeure event in the form of revenue loss
compensation by way of extension of the concession period. The impact of the lockdown disruption/ COVID-19 pandemic will have to be assessed from
lime to time and communicated as we progress during the current financial year. A lot depends on the success of the various pandemic containment
MMWWMQIBMCMIWMWMI?{INWWMf the future impact with

credibility at this stage
For Ajay K. Jain & Co a :
Chartered Accountants (Shyam Lal Gupta) {Su utta) {Rajendra Bingh Yadav )
00T118N 3 - Chalrman Director Director
el DIN- 07 DIN-08687032 DIN-OTT52915

K. gt s V@
Pa - b N S‘" ..
M. No. 085994 (Masoo r) (Sanjeev Kumal Gupta) akshl Mehta )

Chief utivg Officer Chlef Finandjal Officer Company Secretary

Place : New Delhl
Date: LY-6 (- 2020
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Comments of
Comptroller &
Auditor General
of India




HEomsge

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2020.

The preparation of financial statements of IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED for
the period ended 31t March 2020 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management of the
company. The Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
under Section139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial
statements under Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the
standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been
done by them vide their Audit Report dated 24.06.2020.

I, on the behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to conduct
the supplementary audit of the financial statements of IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY
LIMITED for the period ended 31 March 2020 under section 143(6)(a) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Sd/-
(K.S. Ramuwalia)
Place: New Delhi Principal Director of Audit
Date: 07.09.2020 Railway Commercial, New Delhi
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